ASSET MANAGEMENT |
DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 9™ Annual Report of IIFL Asset Management Limited {formerly India
Infoline Asset Management Company Limited} (‘the Company’} together with the Audited Financial Statements for the
year ended March 31, 2019.

1. Financial Results:
The hightights of the financial results for the year under review are as under:
{INR In million)

- Particulars
Gross Total income 1,582.11 1,031.82
lLess: Expenditure 855.41 697.96
Profit /{Loss) Before Taxation 726.70 333.86
Less: Taxation - Current 130.64 36.00
- Deferred 0.97 0.16
- Mat Credit Gains - -
- Short or Excess Provision of Income Tax 0.10 -
Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax 595,00 297.69

* Figure are as per Indian AS
2. Review of Business and Operations:

During FY 2018-2018, the company accelerated across business platforms enhancing product suite and building
capabilities across product platforms. In this endeavor, company recruited a few senior members across
departments; an essential step to build a strong franchise.

Total revenue grew by ~54% to INR 158.08 Crore, while Net Profit (after tax) nearly doubled, increasing by
~99%, to INR 59.38 Crore,

Supplementing to continued growth in revenues and profits, onshore Assets Under Management grew by 48%
on a YoY basis and have now crossed INR 20,102 Crore. AIF AUM has grown by ~34% on a YoY basis and 1IFL
AMC now manages INR 15,661 Crore in AlFs alone. New product launches across categories has led to AUM
growth. IIFL Asset Management Company Limited (IIFL AMC) also received its first offshore mandate in the last
quarter of the year,

3. Macro-economic overview (FY 2018-2019)

After a sedate 2017, the year 2018 marked the return of higher volatility. This was mainly due to a lot of change

in views on the giobal economic outlook. The year 2018 started with a much more optimistic view on growth

and concerns were more around rising interest rates and balance sheet reduction by the Federal Reserve (Fed).

During the course of the year, this view started changing ~ the US-China trade war and the Fed’s actions

resulted in weak consumer data and used home sales in the US. Similar signs of slowdown were seen in other
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developed markets like EU and Japan. As a result of all this, the Fed has paused on taking rate hikes. This has
interesting implications for emerging markets — a potentially weaker dollar and cheaper valuations could
attract global flows into these markets. The only caveat to this is that global growth should not slow down

substantially.

Rack home in India, there is uncertainty around the central elections and most investors have taken a wait &
watch approach. Fundamentally, the economy seems to be in the “Goldilocks” phase — characterised by low
inflation, steady GDP growth, moderate interest rates and gradually rising asset prices. Assuming food inflation
remains benign and oil prices stay in a range, overall inflation and interest rates should be under control. Such
a scenario should also lead to some pick up in the private capex cycle later in the year. Interestingly, we are
aiready seeing lead indicators for an uptick in private sector capex. After witnessing nil to negative growth over
the last four years, short cycle industrial sales and capital goods imports have begun to record 15-20% growth
consistently over the past few quarter. Also, India’s capacity utilisation level has increased by 300bps to ~75%
over the same period. On the consumption side, we are withessing a short-term slowdown in automobile and
consumer durable sales. But we see this as an aberration in a secular trend of consumption in India. The retail
credit-to-GDP ratio (a good indicator of potential consumption demand} is at 14%. For most emerging markets,
this ratio is between 30-50% and for most developed markets it is between 70-100%. This suggests that there
is enotgh scope for consumers in India to borrow and spend.

Equity Markets

Irrespective of the outcome of the central elections, we expect corporate earnings growth to move up by ~15-
18% over the next 2-3 years. We are painfully aware that this has been the view amongst analysts for the past
few years and has consistently met with disappointment. However, simple maths suggests that a reversion to
profitahility by the corporate lenders {Axis, ICICl Bank and 5Bl) would alone drive up to a 10% growth in
earnings. Added to this, a pickup in private sector capex, and recovery in consumption could further improve
earnings. While the composition of the next government matters from a long-term perspective, medium term
earnings growth would be a function of reforms executed over the last few years and an improvement in the
business cycle. Do remember that corporate India’s profits as a proportion of GDP is currently at 2.8%. This is
a 15-year low, and considerably lower than the long-term rate of 4.5%. A shift from single digit corporate
earnings growth over the last seven years to potentially 15-18% over the next 2-3 years bodes well for the
equity market, especially when valuations are in line with long term averages

Fixed Income Markets

Like equity, 2018 saw higher volatility across fixed income markets as well. RBI raised rates by 50 bpsin H1FY19
due to higher inflation projections, particularly for core inflation, Concerns on higher fiscal deficits due to
upcoming elections, liquidity concerns for NBFCs as well as monetary tightening by the federal reserve led to
higher rates across the vield curve. In sharp contrast, HZFY19 saw a number of these concerns ease out. RBI
chose to halance economic growth and inflation concerns and cut rates by 50 bps between Feb-April 19. On
the global front expectations of lower growth and inflation due to irade tensions led to the US fed adopt a
more dovish stance and lower rate hike expectations for the rest of 2019. System liquidity continued to be
wealk as credit growth outpaced deposits and reached a 5 years high. This led to a limited transmission of rate
cuts,
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Going ahead, RBI is likely to prioritise growth over benign inflation and is likely to deliver rate cuts in coming
months. On the globat front US Fed halted its rate hike cycle for the rest of the year, resulting in sharp correction
of US Treasury vields but the global commadity prices and Crude prices kept shooting high, which will keep the
pressure on rates. Higher supply of government bonds may keep yields under pressure in the near term.
Seasonal trends in inflation and concerns around a normal monsoon due to the higher probability of ‘ef-nino’
forecasts may keep vields volatile going forward.

Outloolk for the husiness:

in the year 2018, our AUM grew by ~58%. This growth was due to continuous expansion in the product portfolio
across all the asset classes. [n TQFY19, we raised [NR 470 Crores and INR 952 Crores for {IFL Capital Enhancer
Fund {a mutual fund scheme) and HFL Private Equity Fund (a category If AlF) respectively.

in 2QFY19 we launched 1IFL Multi-Strategy Fund (a category 1 AlF) which has raised ~INR 328 Crores, Apart
from 1IFL Multi-Strategy Fund, we also saw sales momentum in the existing PMS strategies with higher
contribution from IFL Multicap Advantage PMS.

In 3QFY19 we diversified our preduct offerings by launching two more AlFs — IIFL High Growth Companies Fund
(a category 11 AIF) and IIFL Income Qpportunities Fund Series 2 {a category H AlF}. [IFL High Growth Companies
Fund and HFL Income Opportunities Fund Series 2 have raised ~INR 495 Crores and ~INR 840 Crores
respectively.

In 4QFY19, the successful merger of Ashburton’s UCITS fund helped us in expanding our product portfolio
further, We also received an advisory mandate of USD 220 mio from a US based endowment. FY19 ended with
a successful launch of IIFL Income Opportunities PMS raising a corpus of ~INR 265 Crores,

We plan to identify further investment opportunities and strategies over the coming year. We aim to maintain
our position as the largest alternative asset manager in India and build the widest range of offerings across the

segment.

Dividend:
The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year under consideration.

Transfer to Reserves:
During the FY 2018-2019, the Company has not transferred any amount to the General Reserve,

Share Capital;
The total paid up share capital of the Company is INR 32,10,00,000/-,

Details of Subsidiary:
There are no subsidiaries of the Company.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
a. Directors:
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The Board consists of Ms. Homai Daruwalla, Mr, Pranab Pattanayak, and Mr. Anup Maheshwari. Ms. Daruwalla
and Mr, Pattanayak have submitted their declaration under section 149(6} of the Companies Act, 2013 and are
independent directors on the Board. Mr. Anup Maheshwari, Whole Time Director of your Company, retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act,

2013 independent directors are not liable to retire by rotation.

During the period under review, Mr. Anup Maheshwari was appointed as Whole Time Director with effective
from November 14, 2018 and Mr. Amit Shah resigned as Director with effective from January 24, 2019,

i. Board Meetings:

The Board met six times during the year, discussed and approved various matters concerning new
products, financials, and appointment of director and key managerial personnel, audit reports, SEBI

inspection reports, compliance reports and other board businesses.

ii. Committees of the Board
There are currently three Committees of the Board, as follows:

e Audit Committee

o Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
» Nomination and Remuneration Committee

s  Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises of Ms, Homai Daruwalla, Mr. Pranab Pattanayak and Mr. Anup
Maheshwari. The role, terms of reference and powers of the Audit Committee are in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2013 & internal policies, The Committee met six times
during the year under review and discussed on financials, audit issues and appointment of auditor,
All the recommendations of the Audit committee were accepted by the Board.

The terms of reference of audit committee, inter alia, includes;

* Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of

the Company;

s Review and monitor the auditor’'s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit

Process;

«  Approval of gquarterly and annual financials and recommend the same to the Board;

s Review and comment on observation(s} of tnternal Auditors and Statutory Auditors;

¢« Review and comment on ohservation(s) raised under any regulatory inspections;

e Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related

parties;

s Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

* Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

s Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

e Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Ms. Homai Daruwalla, Mr. Pranab
Pattanayak and Mr. Anup Maheshwari. As per the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013, the Committee has formulated a nomination and remuneration policy. The same is annexed
as an Annexure | to this Report,

e Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
As per the provision of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Homai Daruwalla, Mr. Pranab
Pattanayak and Mr. Anup Maheshwari are members of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee {“CSR Committee”). The CSR Committee has approved CSR Policy of the Company. HIFL
group has set-up India Infoline Foundation {referred as “lIFL Foundation”) a Section 8 Company
under the Companies Act, 2013, which will acts as the principal arm to undertake CSR initiatives on
behalf of the [IFL Group.

Separate meeting of Independent Directors:

In compliance with provisions of Companies Act, 2013, a separate meeting of Independent
Directors was held on March 11, 2019 inter alia, to discuss the following:

a) to review the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

{b) review the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors;

{c) assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company
management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.

Upon conclusion of the meeting, the Independent Directors expressed their satisfaction over the
performance of the other Directors and Board as a whole, They also expressed their satisfaction
over the quality, guantity and flow of information between the company management and the
Board/ Committees of the Board from time to time.

iii., Formal Annual Evaluation:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out the annual
performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of
the working of its Committees.

iv. Declaration by Independent Directors -
The Company has received declaration from each independent director under section 149(7} of the
Companies Act, 2013 that they meet the criteria of independence laid down in section 149(6} of the
Companies Act 2013.

b. Key Managerial Personnel;
Mr., Anup Maheshwari is Whole Time Director and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Prashasta Seth is the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, managing the operational and business affairs of the Company. Ms. Priya
Biswas is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, managing the financial affairs of the Company. Mr.
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Chinmay Joshi is the Company Secretary of the company managing the Secretarial and Compliance Function of
the Company.

9, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):

During the financial vear, your Company deployed 2% of its average net profits (computed as per the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013) of the preceding three years on CSR projects, refer Annexure | of the Annual
Report on CSR activities annexed with this report.

All CSR efforts have been directed towards identifying and undertaking projects that hold the potential to create
long-term social impact, to empower marginalized communities and enhance their quality of life. In alignment with
this objective, in FY18-19, the Company undertock a number of projects in the core areas of encouraging
entrepreneurship, tribal developments, woman empowerment and healthcare and education.

To ensure that CSR projects undertaken are implemented and monitored in a systematic manner, during the year,
efforts were focused on establishing systems and processes for the same. Going forward, your Company seeks to
hroaden the scope of CSR projects and employ more funds towards a larger number of projects.

The Annual Report on CSR activities by the Company is annexed as Annexure — i},

10. Managerial Remuneration:

During the year under review, the employees were drawing remuneration pursuant to Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 {2} of the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 the details of the same will be made available if a written request is received from the
shareholders. Further, if the request is received prior to the date of Annual General Meeting the details will be
made available within 3 days and if the request if received post the date of Annual General Meeting then such
particulars will be made available within 7 days.

11. Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Scheme:
The Company does not have an employee stock option / stock purchase scheme. However, employees of the
Company are granted options of HFL Wealth Management Limited, holding company.

12. Risk Management Policy and Internal Adequacy:
The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business

objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a continuous basis. These are discussed at the meetings of the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors of the Company.

The Company has in place adequate internal controls with reference to financial statements and operations and
the same are operating effectively. The Internal Auditors tested the design and effectiveness of the key controls
and no material weaknesses were observed in their examination. Further, Statutory Auditors verified the systems
and processes and confirmed that the Internal Financial Controls system over financial reporting are adeguate and
such controls are operating effectively.
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13. Internal Financial Control:

The Company has in place a mechanism to identify, assess, monitor and mitigate various risks to key business
objectives. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating
actions on a cantinuing basis. These are discussed at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Company has in place adeguate internal controls with reference to financial statements and operations and
the same are operating effectively. The Statutory Auditors verified the systems and processes and confirmed that
the Internal Financial Contrels system over financial reporting are adequate and such controls are operating
effectively.

14. Extract of Annual Return:
The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as “Annexure I11”.

15. Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals Impacting the going concern
status of the company:

There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would impact

the going concern status and the Company’s future operations.

16. Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company:

There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report.

17. Comments on auditors’ report:

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the auditors, in their report.
The Statutory Auditors have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee of the Company in the year
under review.

18. Secretarial Audit:
Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to undertake Secretarial

Audit for the financial year 2018 -2019.

19. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under section 186:
The details of loans, guarantees or investments made are provided in the Financial Statement (Please refer Note
No. 6 and 7 of the Financial Statement).

20. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

All related party transactions that were entered during the financial year were in ordinary course of the business
of the Company and were at arm’s length. No contract/ arrangement have heen entered by the Company with its
promoters, directors, key managerial personnel or other persons which may have a potential conflict with the
interest of the Company. Since all related party transactions entered into by the Company were in the ordinary
course of business and were on an arm’s length basis, Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company. The
transactions with related party are disclosed by way of notes to accounts vide note no. 33 in the standalone
financial results of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018,
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Justification for entering into Related Party Transactions:
The Company usually enters into Related Party Transaction to ensure timely availability of products/ services

required,

21. Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:
The information on energy conservation, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014 is appended helow;

Conservation of energy:

The Company is engaged in providing financial services and as such its operations do not account for substantial
anergy consumption, However, the Company is taking all possible measures to conserve energy. Several
anvironment friendly measures were adopted by the Company such as:

s installation of capacitors to save power,

e Installed Thin Film Transistor (TFT) monitors that saves power,

e Light Emitting Diode (LED) lights,

e Automatic power shutdown of idle monitors,

e Creating environmental awareness by way of distributing the information in electronic form,
=  Minimising air-conditioning usage,

e Shutting off all the lights when not in use, and

s Education and awareness programs for employees,

The management frequently puts circulars on corporate intranet, IWIN for the employees educating them on ways
and means to conserve the electricity and other natural resources and ensures strict compliance of the same.

Technolegy absorption and innovation:

The management understands the importance of technology in the business segments it operates and lays utmost
emphasis on system development and use of best technology available in the industry. The management keeps
itself abreast of technological advancements in the industry and ensures continued and sustained efforts towards
absorption of technology, adaptation as well as development of the same to meet the business needs and
objectives.

The management invested considerable resources in deploying the latest technologies in the areas of wide area
networking using MPLS, video communications, VolP, automated dialers and other customer relationship
management (CRM) tools and software. The Company also made significant strides in using cloud technology for
customer-facing servers providing rapid and inexpensive ramp-up or down of capacity in line with business
requirements.

The management is aware of increasing threats in the Information Security domain and has taken several steps to
ensure that the Company is safe guarded against hacking attacks, dataleakage and security breaches, [T and certain
business processes have heen recertified for 1SO 27001 systems for practicing industry standard security
implementations and processes. The management has invested resources in implementing controls and
continuously monitoring violations, if any.
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Foreign exchange earnings/outgo:
a.) The Foreign exchange earnings: No disclosure required under IndAS

b.) The Foreign exchange expenditure: No disclosure required under IndAS

Research and Development [R & D): The Company is engaged in distribution of various financial products and
advising clients on wealth management through mutual fund and alternative investment fund platform, which
entails internal research of investment products, sectors and markets.

22. Disclosures under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act 2013:

The Company is committed to provide a work environment that ensures every woman employee is treated with

dignity and respect and afforded equitable treatment. The Company is also committed to promote a work

environment that is conducive to the professional growth of its women employees and encourages equality of

opportunity. The Company will not tolerate any form of sexual harassment and is committed to take all necessary

steps to ensure that its women employees are not subjected to any form of harassment.

Your Directors further state that during the year under review your Company has formulated and adopted a 'Policy
for Prevention / Prohibition / Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace’, and that there were
no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)

Act, 2013.

23, Frauds:
The Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds under Section 143{12) of the Companies Act, 2013,

24. Directors Responsibility Statement:
Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, it is hereby confirmed that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) thedirectors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that
period;

c) thedirectors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e} the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and Secretarial Standards and that such system were adeqguate and operating effectively.
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The Directors further confirm that, they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of
all applicable Secretarial Standards and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

25, Downstream Investment:
During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has not made any downstream investments in terms Foreign

Direct investment Policy.

26. Green Initiative:
Section 136 of the Companies Act 2013 and the Rules framed there under allows the Company to send its Financial

Statements by electronic mode to such Members whose shareholding is in dematerialized format and whose email
addresses are registered with the Depositories for communication purposes. As a responsible corporate citizen,
the Company proposes to effect electronic delivery of the Annual Report of the Company in lieu of the paper form
to the Members who have registered their email IDs with the Depositories. A physical copy of the Annual Report
will be sent to those Members who have not registered their email addresses with the Depositories for receiving
electronic communication. A physical copy of this Annual Report can also be obtained free of cost by any member
from the registered office of the Company on any working day during the business hour.

A copy of this Annual Report for FY 2018-19 is available on website of the Company, hitps:/fwww iifimf.com

27, Aclnowledgements:

We are thankful for the significant contribution made by our employees and also express our sincere thanks and
appreciation to Securities and Exchange Board of India, Association of Mutual Fund of India, the Company's
Bankers, Auditors and Counsels for their continued support and co-operation,

We also acknowledge the support and the continued co-operation received from [IFL Wealth Management
Limited, sponsor during the year under review. We look forward to the same going forward.

28. Annexure(s) forming part of this Report of Directors:
The Annexure(s) referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be disclosed are annexed
herewith and form a part of this Report of the Directors:

¢+ Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company as Annexure |,

+  Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities for the financial year 2018-19 — Annexure -
it

*  Form No. MGT-9 - Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended March 31, 2019 — Annexure — |II,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

FR e

‘Homai ParuwaHa Anup Maheshwari
Chairrfian Whole Time Director & CEQ
DIN: 00365880 DIN: 08258671

Date: May 10, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURES TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT
ANNEXURE {
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

OBJECTIVE: This policy on nomination and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management has been approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (the Committee) and Board of

Director.
BEFINITIONS:
1. “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder, as amended from time to time.
2. "Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.
3. "Key Managerial Personnel” {KMP) means:
e Managing Director, or Chief Executive Officer or Manager
s Whole-time Director;
s Chief Financial Officer;
»  Company Secretary; and such other officer as may be prescribed.
4, “Research Analysts” shall have the same meaning as defined under the SEBI (Research Analysts) Regulation,
2014 as amended from time to time.
5. "Senior Management” means the personnel of the company who are members of its core management team

excluding Board of Directors comprising all members of management one level below the executive directors,
including the functional heads.

Unless the context otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 / Listing agreement (wherever applicable) as maybe amended from time to
time shall have the meaning respectively assigned to them therein,

ROLE OF COMMITTEE:

-

To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management.

To recommend to the Board on policy on Remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel,
Senior Management and other employees.

To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board and provide necessary report to the Board for
further evaluation of the Board.

To formulate the criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board.

To devise a policy on Board diversity.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT:

1.
a)

Appointment Criteria and Qualifications:
A person being appointed as director, KMP or in senior management should possess adequate
qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/she is considered for appointment,

Independent Director:
(i) Qualifications of Independent Director:

UFL ASSEY MANAGEMENT LIMITED

(FORRAERLY KNWH AY A

L ASSET MANAGERMENT CUMPARNY LIMITED)
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V.

An Independent director shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields
of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance,
operations or other disciplines related to the company's business.

(ii) Positive attributes of Independent Directors:
An independent director shall be a person of integrity, who possesses relevant expertise and experience
and who shall uphold ethical standards of integrity and probity; act objectively and constructively;
exercise his responsibilities in a bona-fide manner in the interest of the company; devote sufficient time
and attention to his professional obligations for informed and balanced decision making; and assist the
company in implementing the best corporate governance practices.

2. Removal:
Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act, rules and
regulations there under, the Committee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in writing,
removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the
said Act, rules and regulations.

3. Retirement;
The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the Act
and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, KMP, Senior
Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement
age, for the benefit of the Company.

REMUNERATION:
A. Directors;
a. Executive Directors (Managing Director, Manager or Whole Time Director);

(iy At the time of appointment or re-appointment, the Executive Directors shall be paid such
remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Company (which includes the N&R Commiittee
and the Board of Directors) within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

{ii)  The remuneration shall be subject to the approval of the Members of the Company in General
Meeting as per the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013,

{ili) The remuneration of the Manager/ CEQ/ Managing Director/ Whole Time Director is broadly divided
into fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the Company. In determining the remuneration (including the fixed increment and
performance bonus}, the Committee shall consider the following:

e the relationship of remuneration and performance benchmark;

s halance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and [ong-term performance objectives,
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals;

e responsibility required to be shouldered, the industry benchmarks and the current trends;

e the Company's performance vis-a-vis the annual budget achievement and individual
performance.

b. Non-Executive Director:
{iy The Non-Executive Independent Director may receive fees for attending meeting of Board or
Committee thereof. Provided that the amount of such fees shall not exceed Rupees One Lac per
{IFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LEMITED

(FOREERLY KNITWRAS INDEA SNFOUING ASSET MANAGEMENT COMPARY LIMITED)
Carpnrate &Registerad Qffice:
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meeting of the Board or Committee or such amount as may be prescribed by the Central Government
from time to time.

A Non-Executive Director may he paid commission on an annual basis, of such sum as may be
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee,

The Committee may recommend to the Board, the payment of commission, to reinforce the
principles of collective responsibility of the Board.

In determining the quantum of commission payable to the Directors, the Committee shall make its
recommendation after taking into consideration the overall performance of the Company and the
onerous responsibilities required to be shouldered by the Director,

The total commission payable to the Directors shall not exceed prescribed limits as specified under
Companies Act, 2013.

The commission shall be payable on prorate basis to those Directors who occupy office for part of
the year.

B. KMP & Senior Managerial Personnel:

Thé remuneration to the KVIP and Senior Management Personnel will be based on following guidelines:

a. maintaining a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance
ohjectives appropriate to the working of the Company;

b. compensation should be reascnable and sufficient to attract retain and motivate KMP and senior
management; .

¢. Remuneration payahle shouid comprise of a fixed component and a performance linked variable based on
the extent of achievement of individual performance vis-a-vis overall performance of the company;

d. Remuneration shall be also considered in form of long-term incentive plans for key employees, based on
their contribution, position and length of service, in the nature of ESOPS/ESPS.

C. Research Analysts:

{i) The compensation of all individuals employed as Research Analyst shall be reviewed, documented and
approved at least annually by the Committee
{if} While approving the compensation of the Research Analysts, the Committee shall not consider:

a.

Any specific merchant banking or investment banking or brokerage services transaction which might
have happened because of the services of the Research Analyst; and

Any contribution made hy the Research Analyst to the Company's investment banking or merchant
banking or brokerage services business other than that of preparing and / or providing research
reports.

EVALUATION:
The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director at regular interval {yearly]. The
Committee shall also formulate and provide criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board as a

whole, if applicable,

OTHER DETAILS:

Membership

The Committee shall consist of minimum 3 non-executive directors, majority of them being independent. The
Chairperson of the Committee shall be an Independent Director. The Chairperson of the Company shall not be a

HEL ASSET MANAGEMENT LEMITED
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Chairman of the Committee. The term of the Committee shall be continued unless terminated by the Board of
Director.

Frequency of Meetings
The meeting of the Committee shall be held at such regular intervals as may be required. The Commitiee may invite

such executives, as it considers appropriate, to be present at the meetings of the Committee.

Secretary
The Company Secretary of the Company shall act as Secretary of the Committee. In absence of Company Secretary,

the Committee may designate any other officials or any of the members of the Committee who shall act a Secretary
of the Committee.

ITFE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
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ANNEXURE I

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the Companies {Corporate Social
Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy,
including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to
the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or
programs.

The Company has in place a CSR Policy, approved
by the Directors of the Company. The CSR Policy
has been uploaded on website www.iifimi{.com.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

The CSR Committee of the Company consist of
Ms, Homai Daruwalta, Mr. Pranab Pattanayak
and Mr. Anup Maheshwari

3. Average net profit of the company for last INR 28,43,87,706/-
three financial years
4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure INR 56,87,754/-
{two per cent of the amount as in item 3
above)
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year,

a2) Total amount to be spent for the INR 56,87,754/-

financial year;
b) Amountunspent, if any; Nil

Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1 skill Education | West 75,000/- Direct - 75,000/- 75,000/-
development Bengal 75,000/~ Through India
of the youths Infoline

Foundation

2 Sanitation Health West 2,25,000/- Direct - 2,25,000/- 2,25,000/-
facility at Bengal 2,25,000/ Through India
Govt, Schools - Infoline

Foundation

HFLASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

[FORMERLY KROWH AS A INFOLING AGSET MANAGE

Corperate &Registered Office:
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3 Health and Health Mumbai 2,50,000/- Direct - 2,50,000/- 2,50,000/-
Hygiene 2,50,000/ Through India
Drives for - Infoline
School Foundation
Children
4 Support to Education | Maharashtr | 3,00,000/- Direct - 3,00,000/- | 3,00,000/-
Mid-day meal a 3,00,000/ Through India
programme - Infoline
Foundation
5 Skill Skill West 20,00,000/- Direct - 20,00,000/- | 20,00,000/-
Development Developm | Bengal 20,00,000 Through India
for women ent /- Infoline
Foundaticn
& Skill Skill Waest 9,00,000/- Direct - 9,00,000/- | 9,00,000/-
Development | Developm | Bengal 9,00,000/ Through India
for Youth ent - Infoline
Foundation
7 Water Environme | Rajasthan 1,02,000/- Direct - 1,02,000/- | 1,02,000/-
Conservation nt 1,02,000/ Through India
- infoline
Foundation
8 Development | Promotion | Across 40,871/- Direct - 40,871/- 40,871/-
of National of sports india 40,871/- Through India
level Sports Infoline
Foundation
9 Development | Promotion | Across 4,00,000/- Direct - 4,00,000/- | 4,00,000/-
of National of sports India 4,00,000/ Through India
fevel Sports - Infoline
Foundation
10 | Support to Differently | Chennai 7,00,000/- Direct - 7,00,000/- | 7,00,000/-
Children with | Abled (Tamil 7,00,000/ Through India
Learning Nadu) - Infoline
Disability Foundation
11 | Support and Promotion | Across 5,00,000/- Direct - 5,00,060/- | 5,00,000/-
nurturing to of Sports India 5,00,000/ Through India
players from - Infoline
under Foundation
{IFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
(FORRELELY BN AS INDIA PNFOLING ASSET RAMNAGEMERT COMPANY LIRITED
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privileged
backgrounds
12 | Eradication of | Education | Udaipur 1,94,883/- Direct - 1,94,883/- 1,94,883/-
Girt Child {Rajasthan) 1,94,883/ Through India
Illiteracy - Infoline
Foundation

6. In case the company has failed to spend | During the financial year 2018-19, the Company successfully
the two per cent of the average net profit | deployed 2% of its average net profits of the preceding three
of the last three financial years or any part | years on CSR projects,

thereof, the Company shall provide the | In line with the company’s CSR strategy, the Company has
reasons for not spending the amount in its | focused its efforts on identifying and undertaking CSR projects
Board report that support the overarching mission of contributing
proactively towards Nation building. Women Empowerment,
Education and Health continue toc be one of the key focus
areas. The Company has utilized part of the accrued CSR
expenses and is reviewing new projects, to enable substantial
CSR activities in financial year 2018-19.

Brief description of the projects:

1) skill development of the Youths: Gaining and upgrading skills gives leverage to our youths to build and pursue a
career of their dream. It's equally important for development of the employability of working population, {iFL
Foundation specifically targeted youths through skill development courses in various industry verticals,

2) Sanitation facility at Govt. Schools: Providing access to toilets in schools by constructing new toilets or renovating
existing facilities, The initiative included clubhing the construction of toilets with comprehensive health and hygiene
education to ensure awareness among the community and the children, alike,

3) Health and Hygiene Drives for School Children: Health and hygiene is an issue of paramount importance in a city as
Mumbai, which is so densely populated, OQur intervention aimed at spreading awareness among school children over -
prevention, detection and best practices to personal and community hygiene.

4) Support to Mid-day Meal Programme: Provision of fresh and nutritious meals to govt. school children on every

single school day.

5} skill Development: The intervention aims to empower Women and Youth through skill development. As a livelihood
intervention, is a crucial step in ensuring long-term positive social impact in communities. Through a holistic approach
of integrating education and community development with employability and entrepreneurship, we ensure sustainable
livelihood for individuals from disadvantaged backgrounds.

HFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
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6) Water Conservation: Initiative to build ground water resources through construction of check-dams, that result in

recharging of ground wells,

7) Development of National level Sports: India has always lacked behind in sports despite having no dearth of talent
and people, What is needed is adequate exposure, proper coaching and support to the playelNR India Infoline
Foundation organizes grass root level yet International class sports tournaments to not only identify but nurture talent
and provide necessary platform for the budding sports enthusiast to excel and move up the charts,

8) Children with Learning Disability: Children with brain damage have difficulty developing on par with their neuro-
typical peers in all categories of development, e.g. mental, intellectual, physical and emotional. As a result, they need
external support and stimulus to develop these skills. The designed intervention helps to create self-awareness in the

child; builds social skills, communication and cognition.

9) Girl Child illiteracy eradication program: [t is amatter of great concern and shame that girls in large number continue
to be out of school and remain illiterate, This problem is particularly severe in northern state of Rajasthan. India infoline
Foundation has vowed to change this in next few years through starting community schools which are multi grade
multi-level schools started in the villages as per the convenience of the girls to enahle them to get educated. With 1156
such schools called “Sakhiyon ki Baadi” across 10 districts, India Infoline foundation has already brought back over
34,452 girls into the fold of education. By 2020, we are aiming towards 100% eradication of llliteracy from Villages that

we work at,

5. Responsibility statement of the CSR Committee

Through this report, lIFL Asset Management Limited seeks to communicate its commitment towards CSR to the Ministry
of Corporate AffailNR The implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with the CSR objectives
and policies as [aid down in this report. The Board of the company and the CSR Committee is responsible for the
integrity and the objectivity of all the information provided in the disclosure above. All projects reported have been
selected based on careful evaluation of the extent to which they create sustainable positive outcomaes for marginalized
segments of society, The company has adopted measures to ensure that these projects are implemented in an effective
and efficient manner so that they are able to deliver maximum potential impact. In line with the requirements of the
Section 135, the company has also established a monitoring mechanism to track the progress of its CSR projects,

For and on hehalf ifathe Board of Directors

NI'; W Mr. Anup Maheshwari
' Chairmfian, CSR Committee & Director Whole Time Director & CEOD
DIN: 00365880 DiN: 06765300

Date: May 10, 2019
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE Iit
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I Registration and other details:
i) CIN: ' U74900MH2010PLC201113
if) Registration Date 22-Mar-10
iii) Name of the Company IIFL Asset Management Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the
Company Public Limited Company, Limited by Shares
v) Address ofthe Registered office and [IFL. Centre, 6th Floor, Kamala City, S. B. Marg,
contact details Lower Parel (West) Mumbai - 400013
vi) Whether listed company No
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Link Intime Private Limited
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any Address : C-101, 247 Park,
LBS Marg, Vikhroli {West) - 400083
Tel: 491 22 4918 6000
Fax: +91 22 49186060
E-mail : mumbai@linkintime.co.in
Website: www.linkintime. co.in
il. Principal business activities of the company:

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company are:-

Management Fees 66301 74.15%

* As per National Industrial Classification — Ministry of Statistics and Programme Implementation

HI. Particulars of helding, subsidiary and asscciate companies:
ia
. .. Ultimate
IIFL Holdings Limited L74999MH1995PLC0O93797 ) - 2(46)
Holding
IFL Wealth Management Holding
Limited U74140MH2008PLC177884 Company 100% 2(46)

HFEL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

(FORAERLY KNGWN AS INDIA INFOLING ASSEYT MANAGERMENT COMPANY LIBETED)
Carporate &Registered Office:
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V. Share holding pattern (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total
Equity):
i}  Category-wise Share Holding

A. Promoters

(i} Indian - - - - . R . .
alindividual /HUF - - - - - - - N
b) C(_-_zntrai Government - - - “ - - - R
¢) State Government(s) - - - - . . . R
¢) Bodies Corporate 3,21,00,000 - 3,21,00,000 | 1006 | 3,21,00,000 - 3,21,00,000 100
e) Banks / Fi - - - - - . . _
f)Any Other - - - - - . - B
Sub-total (A) (1):- - - - - - - - .
(2) Foreign - - - - . . . _
a) NRlIs - Individuals - - - . - - _ .

h)Other individuals - - - - - - - _

¢) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - -

d) Banks / FI ; - - - - ; . _
e)Any Other . - - - - - - .

Sub-total {A) (2):- - - - - - . B .
Total shareholding of | 3,21,00,000 - 3,21,00,000 | 100 | 3,21,00,000 - 3,21,00,000 100
Promoter {A) =
(A)(1}+(A)(2)

B. Public Shareholding
1. Institutions - - - - . - . _
a) Mutual Funds - - - - . - - -
b) Banks / £l - - - - - _ N _
c) Central Govt - - - - - _ . j
d} State Govt(s) - - - - - - B .
e) Venture Capital - ; R i - - - -

f} Insurance - - - - - - - i}
g) Flis - - - - - - - j

IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

FURIMEELY KNOWN AT INDIA INFOLING ASSEY MANAGEMENT COMPANY LIRITED)

Corporate &Regiztered Office:
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h)foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i)Cthers (specify)

Sub-total {B)(1):-

2.Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

il) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders holding
rnominal share capital
upto INR 1 lakh

it} Individual

shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

¢) Others {specify)

Sub-total (B){2):-

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

3,21,00,000

3,21,00,000

100

3,21,00,000

3,21,00,000

100

{ii) Shareholding of Promoters

HFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS IDIA INFOUINT ASSTY RANAGERMENT COMPANY LIMITED

Carparnte &Registored Gffice:
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IFL Wealth 3,21,00,000 | 100 NIl 3,21,00,000 | 100 NIL NIL
Management
Limited

Total 3,21,00,000 | 100 Nil 3,21,00,000 | 100 Nil NIL

*Note: 6 equity shares held by nominee shareholders, on behalf of lIFL Wealth Management Limited.

iii)  Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify, if there is no change)

At the beginning of the 3,21,00,000 100% 3,21,00,000 | 100%
year
Date wise Increase /| Nil
Decrease in Promoters
Share holding during the
year specifying the
reasons for increase [/
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat
equity etc):

At the end of the year 3,21,00,000 | 100% | 3,21,00,000 | 100%

Note: There is no change in the promoters’ shareholding during the period from 01-04-2018 to 31-03-20189.

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs)}*:

Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share holding
during the year specifying

HFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

TEURBALRLY KROWH AS DA IREOLING ASSEY BANAGEMENT COMPANY LIMITED)
Carporate Hllegistered Office:
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the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus / sweat
equity etc):

At the End of the year (or |- -
on the date of separation, if
separated during the year

*IFL Wealth Management Limited holds 100% of the shares of the company.

ial Per

Shareholding of Directors and Key M

anage
hiof the'Di fing.

At the beginning of the year -- -

Date wise Increase / Decrease in |- -
Share holding during  the year
specifying the reasons for
increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):

At the End of the year - -

*IFL Wealth Management Limited holds 100% of the shares of the company.

Y. Indebtedness:

IndebtednessoftheCompanyinctudinginterestoutstanding/accruedbutnotduefor payments {INR In Millions)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial
year

i) Principal Amount

175,00 175.00
i) interest due but not paid 0.04 0.04
iii} Interest accrued but not due
Total (isiisiii
otal (i+ii+ii) 175.04 175.04
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
e Additi
rHen 414.10 414.10

HFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
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» Reduction

{589.10)

(589,10)

Net Chanhge

{175.00)

(175.00)

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

it} Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+i+ii)

HFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITEDR

(FORRILELY KROWN AS DA OLINE ASSET WMANAL

VEN T CORMPANY LIk TED)
Corporate BRegistered Office:

6k Floor, HFL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013
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Vi, Remuneration of directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Gross salary

tax Act, 1861

{a)Salary as per provisions contained insection17(1) of the Income-

1,26,77,007

1,26,77,007

{h) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

{c) Profits in lieu of safary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961

"gtock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
-others, specify

Cthers, please specify

6,65,972.34

6,65,972.34

Total {A)

1,33,42,979.34

1,33,42,979.34

Ceiling as per the Act

INR 74,28,70,872/-

B. Remuneration to other directors:

independent Directors

Fee for attending board/ committee 4,50,000| 3,75,000 Nil 8,25,000
meetings (Sitting Fee)

Commission™® 10,00,000 | 10,00,G00 Nil 20,00,000
Total (1) 14,50,000 | 13,75,000 Nil 28,25,000
Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board /committee Nil Wil Nil N
Commission il Nil Nif N

Total (2) Nil Nil Nil Nil

IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
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Total (B)=(1+2)

14,50,000] 13,75,000 | Nil

J 28,25,000

Total Managerial Remunerataon*

independent Director)

INR 20,00,000 /- (includes commission paid to other Director, i.e., an

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

INR 74,28,70,872/-

Note: *Total Managerial Remuneration includes remuneration to Managing Director, Whole- Time Directors and

other Directors.

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

‘Rémtne

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17{1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

2,45,63,079

1,98,66,606

23,63,330

79,41,937

5,47,34,952

(b} Value of perquisites
ufs 17(2) Income-tax Act,
1961

(ciProfits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3)
Income tax Act, 1861

Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others

10,44,355.205 |

86,769.375

‘Total

IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIM!TED

FEORRAERLY KNOWIR AS (MDA INEQLING AGSET MANAGEMENT £

Carporate &Registerad Office:

&' Tloor, BFL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,

400013
Fawi {91-22) 46464706

Lower Parel, BMumbai -
Tal {91-22) 39555600
{An FL Group Compiny)
www, iifimfcom
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Vil. Penalties / Punishment/Compounding of offences:

A, Company

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

NIL

B. Directors

Penalty
Punishment

Compounding

NIL

C. Other Officers In Default

Penalty

NIL

Punishment

Compounding

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

oo w,,zc-ﬁQ < oh /,é/{«,

Homai D;ilj,\@_l,l,aw—w* Anup Maheshwari
Chairma Whole Time Director & CEOQ

~=DIN: 00365880 DiN: 06765300

Date: May 10, 2019
Place: Mumbai

HFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

IFORIERLY KROWR AS IDIA IFQLING ASSET IGANAGERENT COMPANY LINEITER)
Caorporate Bftegistered Office:

Gt Floor, HFL Centre, Kamala City, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Lower Parel, Mumbai 400 033

Tel (90-22) 29585600 © Faxs (91-22) 46464706
{AnTFL Group Campany)
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Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel; +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of IIFL Asset Management Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IIFL Asset Management
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit, total comprehensive incame, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

= The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report
including Annexures to Directors’ report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The Directors’ report including
Annexures to Directors’ report is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

= Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
\! and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27" - 32" Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbal - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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= In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.[If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

« When we read the Directors’ report including Annexures to Directors’ report, if
we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance as required under
SA 720 ‘The Auditor's responsibilities Relating to Other Information’

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance Including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other Irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management

either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

©
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and bellef were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes

in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of
account.
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d)

e)

f)

a)

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is

disqualified as on 31 March 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “"Annexure A". Our report expresses an
unmeodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,

in our opinion and to the best of information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as

amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the

explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

iii. There were no amounts required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Crder.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

@W””ﬂw

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar
(Partner)
{Membership No. 105035)

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10 May 2019
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of IIFL Asset
Management Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and malintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit, We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk., The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

®
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial

Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar
(Partner)

(Membership No. 105035)
Place: Mumbai

Date: 10 May 2019
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion,
provides for physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold

land and building and hence reporting under clause (i)(c) of the CARO 2016 is
not applicable.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause (ii) of
the CARQO 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have
been regular as per stipulations.

() There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the year end.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing
guarantees and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not

accepted any deposit during the year and hence reporting under clause (v) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the Company’s business / activities, reporting under
clause (vi) CARQ 2016 is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(i)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Custom Duty, cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, Employees’ State Insurance is not applicable to the
Company.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Custom Duty,
cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c) There are no dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Customs Duty and Value Added Tax as on 31 March 2019 on account of
disputes.

The Company has not taken loans or borrowings from financial institutions, banks and
government or has not issued any debentures. Hence reporting under clause (vili) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix)
of the CARO 2016 is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers
or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 is not applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
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or directors of its holding company or persons connected with them and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companlies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

Pond

Pallavi A. Gorakshakar

(Partner)
(Membership No. 105035)

Place: Mumbai,
Date: 10 May 2019



IiFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

(T in Mn)
;‘:‘ Particulars Note No.| Asat Mar 31, 2!:19' As at Mar 31, znisl As at Apr 01, 2017
ASSETS
1 |Finaneial Assets
{a) |Cash and cash equivalents 4 3.45 28.97 89753
(b} |Receivables 5
(1) Trade receivables 422,12 192.23 199.25
(1) Other recaivables 1.07 112 012
[c) |Loans 6 1,402.48 1,132.55 20,98
(d) |investments 7 30.51 2318 21,67
(e) |Other financial assets B 417 130.20 0.01
2 |Non-Financlal Assets
{a) [Current tax assets (net) 58.09 59.57 41,84
(b) |Deferred tax assets (net) 9 3.46 3495 3.38
{e) [Praperty, plant and equipment 10 0.08 D17 0.27
(d) |Capital work-in-progress 11 6.32 6.32 .
{e) |Other intangible assets 12 10.50 14.13 0.82
{f} |Other nan-financial assets 13 139,84 71.90 1.99
Total Assets 2,083.00 1,673.33 1,187.85
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1 |Financial Liabilities
{a) |Payables
(1)Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprizes :
(ii} total outstanding dues of ereditars other than micro enterprises 4
and small entarprises 115.53 159.84 11119
(b) |Borrowings 15 - 175.00 -
{c) |Other financial liabilities 16 12,80 20.46 56.99
2 |Mon-Finaneial Liabilities
(a) Icurrent tax liabilities (net) 14.74 1.63 .
(b) JProvisions 17 17.58 19.61 14,72
{e) |Other non-financial liabilitles 18 51,76 27.04 3102
3 |EqQuiTy
(a) |Equity share capital 19 321.00 321.00 321.00
(b) JOther equity 20 1,542 68 948.75 652,94
- Total Liabilities and Equity 2,083.09 1,673.33 1,187.86
See accompanying Nates to the Financial Statemants

In terms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Selis LLP
Chartered Accountants

Nadwlinhe - :

Pallavl A. Gorakshakar
Partnar
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Place : Mumbai
Datad: May 10, 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

et O i \/W/

Anup Maheshwari

hiE

{DIN; 0B258671)

hinmay Jashi
Secretary




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

{T in Mn)
;t' Particulars Note No. 2018-19 2017-18
1 Revenue from operations
(a) Feas and commission income 21 1,173.07 615.03
(b) Dividend & Distribution income on investments 22 249,77 205.83
Total revenue from operations 1,422.84 820.86
2 |other income 23 159.27 210.95
3 [Total incame (1+2) 1582.11 1,031.81
|Expenses
(a) Finance costs 24 1.20 5.23
(b} Fees and commission expenses 249.02 191,88
{e) Employee benefits expenses 25 398.98 299,65
(d}  |Depreciatien, amartization and impairment 10,12 6.18 280
(e} Others expenses 26 200.03 198.29
4 Total expenses 95541 697,95
5 Profit before tax {3-4) 726.70 333.86
[ Tax expense:
[a) Current tax 27 130.74 36.00
{b) Deferred tax 27 0.97 0.17
7 Profit for the year (5-8) 534,95 297.69
B Other comprehensive Income
(i) ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 251
- Remeasurements of Employee Benefits {1.51) (2.67)
(if) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss 0.44 0,78
Other comprehensive income [1.07)) (1.89)
g Total comprehensive income for the year (7+8) (Comprising profit a"dF
other comprehensive incame for the year) 593.92 295.80
10 Earnings per equity share
Basic (Rs.) 28 18.54 9.27
Diluted {Rs.) 28 18.54 9.27

See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements

Interms of our report attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

RUnuldhah

Pallavi A, Gorakshakar
Partnes

Placa : Mumbai
Dated: May 10, 2019

For and on behall of the Board of Directors

= , i
H rm
_‘,,f’flﬂli’:man

(DIN: bO3E5880)

W5

Priya Biswas
Chief Financial Officer

(.

pels

Anup’ Maheshwari
Whale Time Director
(DIN: 0B288671)

Chinnay Joshi
Compady Secretary



IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

CASHFLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(T in Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
A. Cash flows from operating activitias
Profit before tax 726.70 333.86
Adjustments for:
Depreciation & amortisation 6.18 2.90
Provision for employee benefits (0.99) 4.48
Net changes in fair value through Profit and Loss of investments
- Realised (27.50) {123.20)
- Unrealised (2.45) (1.45)
Employee share based payments 1.95 2.68
Interest income (129.32) (86.30)
Interast expenses 1.20 5.23
Dividend Income from investments (0.24) {1.29)
Distribution fee-axempt (249.53) (204.54)
|Operating profit before working capital changes 326.00 (67.63)
Ichanges in working Capital :
(Increase)/ Decrease in Financial/Nan-financial Assets (173.62) (221.47)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Financial/Nan-financial Liabilities {11.63)] 20,93
Cash generated from operations 140.75 (268.18)
Net Income tax{paid) / refunds (117.68) {51.49)
|net eash (used in)/ generated from operating activities (4) 23.07 (319.66)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments (3,721.17) (25,308.37)
Sale of investments 3,993.33 25,636.06
Interest received 130.80 24.78
Dividend income 0:24 1.29
Purchase/sale of Property, plant and equipment (includes intangible assets) {2.46) (22.43)
(Nat}
Intercorporate Deposit - given |6,612.40) (8,198.50)
Intercorporate Deposit - recelved 5,339.28 7,088.50
|Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (B) 127.62 (718.67)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Borrowings - taken 414.10 3,537.13
Borrowings - repaid (589.11) (3,362.13)
Iinterest pald (1.20) (5.23)
|Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activitles (C) {176.21) 169.77
|net (decrease] in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {25.52) {B6B.56)
Opening Cash & cash equivalents 28.97 B97.53
Closing Cash & cash equivalents 3.45 28.97
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IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2019

(% in Mn)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars E Total
Qulty Share Total Other Equity b
Capital
Securities Premium |Retained Earnings
Balance at the Apr 1, 2018 321.00 204.00 744.75 948.75 1,269.75
Profit for the year - - 594.99 594.99 594.99
Other comprehensive income - - (1.07) (1.07) (1.07)
Balance at the Mar 31, 2019 321.00 204.00 1,338.67 1,542.67 1,863.67
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
(X in Mn)
Equity Attributable to Owners of the Company
Reserves & Surplus
Particulars Equity Share Total
Capital Total Other Equity
Securities Premium |Retained Earnings
Balance atthe Apr 1, 2017* 321.00 204.00 448,94 652.94 973.94
Profit for the year 7 - 297.69 297.69 297.69
Other Comprehensive income . - (1.89) (1.89) (1.89)
Balance at the Mar 31, 2018 321.00 204.00 744.75 948.75 1,269.75

*Refer Note 3

Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised In Securities premium reserve.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the protits that the Company has earned till date, less any transters to general reserve, dividends or other

distributions paid to shareholders.
In terms of our report attached
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Chartered Accountants
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IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 1. Corporate Information:

IIFL Asset Management Limited ("the Company”) Is a public limited company Incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is registered
with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under the SEB| (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996 ('the Regulations') and acts as an investment
manager Lo ‘IIFL Mutual Fund’. Pursuant to Regulation 24(b) of the Regulations, SEBI gave its No Objection to the Company to undertake Investment
Management and Advisory Services to pooled assets including Alternative Investment Funds / Offshore Funds and to undertake Portfolio Management
Services, Pursuant to the same, the Company acts as an Investment Manager to the Alternative Investments Funds and Venture Capital Fund. The
Company has alse cbtained Portfolic Management services license from Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) and carries out the said services. The
Company Is reglstered with Securities and Exchange Commission as an Investment Adviser.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies

a) Statement of Compliance:

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Campanles Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indlan Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and amendments thereof Issued by Ministry of Corporate
Affairs in exerclse of the powers canferred by section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, In addition, the guidance notes/announcements |ssuad by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory promulgations require a different
treatment

Upto the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with the requirements of Indian GAAP (IGAAF), as per
standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2008, These are the Company’s first Ind A5 financial statements. The date of
transition to Ind AS is April 1, 2017. Refer note 3 for the details of first-time adoption exermptions availed by the Company.

b) These financials statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on May 10, 2019,

¢) Revenue Recognition

Revenue Is recognised when the promised goods and services are transferred to the customer i.e. when performance obligations are satisfied. Revenue is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The following Is a description of principal activities from which the Group generates its revenue.

= Investment/Fund Management fees: The fees are a series of a similar services and a single performance obligation satisfied over a period of time. These
are recognised in accordance with the arrangements entered into with the respective customers.

« Portfolic Management fees: The fees are a series of a similar services and a single performance obligation satisfied over a period of time. These are
billed on a monthly / quarterly basis.

* Others: Revenue is recognised when the outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

= Investments related Income

- Interest income on investments and loans is accrued an a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective Interast rate
Including Interest on investments that may be classified as fair value through profit or loss or fair value through other comprehensive income.

- Dividend/ distribution Income is aceounted in the period In which the right ta receive the same is established.

d) Property, plant and equipment
Measurement at recognition:

An Item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at cost, Following initial recognition, items of
property, plant and equipment are carried at Its cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The Company identifies and determines cost of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment separately, if the part has a cast which is significant
to the total cost of that itern of property, plant and equipment and has useful life that 15 materially different from that of the remaining item.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of Its purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable purchase taxes or
levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissianing, restaration
and similar liabilities, If any. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Cost includes cost of replacing a part of a
plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met. Expenses related to plans, designs and drawings of buildings or plant and machinery is capitalized
under relevant heads of property, plant and equipment if the recognition criteria are met.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Capital work in progress and Capital advances:

Cost of assets not ready for intended use, as on the Balance Sheet date, is shown as capital work in progress, Advances given towards acquisition of fixed

Depreciation: Depreciation on each item of property, plant and equipment Is provided using the Straight-Line Method based on the useful lives of the
assets as estimated by the management and is charged to the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss. Slgnificant components of assets identified
separately pursuant to the requirements under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 are depreciated separately over their useful life,

Freehold land is not depreciated. Leasehald land and Leasehold improvements are amortized over the periad of lease.

Individual assets / group of similar assets costing up to Rs.5,000 has been depreciated In full in the year of purchase,

Estimated useful life of the assets Is as under:

Class of assets Useful life in years
Computers* El
Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures® # [

® For these class of assets, based on internal assessment and independent technical evaluation carried out by external valuers the management believes
that the useful llves as given above best represent the perlod over which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for thesa assets
is different from the useful lives as preseribed under Part C of Schedule 1| of the Companies Act 2013,

# Furniture and fixtures Includes leasehold improvemnents, which Is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

The useful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and the depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each
financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Derecognition:
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when na future economic benefits are expected from its

use or disposal. The galn or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is measured as the difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and is recognized in the combined Statement of Profit and Loss when the item s
derecognized.

&) Intangible assets
Measurement at recognition:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured an initial recognition at eost. Intangible assets arising on acquisition of business are measured at fair
value as at date of acquisition. Internally generated intangibles are not capitalized and the related expenditure is recognized In the Combined Statement
of Prafit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Following initial racognition, Intangible assets with finite useful life are carried at cost
less accurnulated amortizatlon and accumulated impairment loss, If any. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, that are acquired separately, are
carried at cost/fair value at the date of acquisition less accunulated impairment loss, if any.

Amortization:

Intangible Assets with finite lives are amortized on a Straight Line basis over the estimated useful economic life, The amortization expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognized in the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amartization period and the amortization method for an Intangible asset with finite useful life is reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of
these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change Is accounted for as a change In an accounting estimate.

Estimated useful economic life of the assets is as under:

Class of assets Useful life in years
Software 3

Darecagnition:

The carrying amount of an intanglble asset is derecognized on dispasal or when no future economic benefits are expected fram its use or disposal. The
galn or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the intangible asset and is recognized in the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset |s derecognized.




HIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

f) Impairment

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwlll, are not subject to amortization and are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an Indication that the asset may be impaired. Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed far im pairment, whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amount may not be recoverable, Such circumstances include, though are nat limited 10,
significant or sustained decline in revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash generating unit (CGU) exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recaverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. To calculate value In use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to thelr present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risk specific to the asset. For an asset that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recaverable amaunt Is determined for the CGU to which the asset belangs. Fair value less cost to
sell is the best estimate of the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset In an arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing partias, less
the cost of disposal. Impairment losses, If any, are recognized in the combined Statement of Profit and Loss and included in depreciation and amortization
expenses,

Impairment losses are reversed in the combined Statement of Profit and Loss only to the extent that the asset's carrylng amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognized.

g) Financial Instruments
A financial instrurnent is any contract that glves rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement:

the Company recognizes a financial asset in its Balance Sheet when it becames party to the contractual pravisions of the instrument.

All flnancial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

However, trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.
Subsequent measurement:

For subsequent measurement, the Company classifias a financial asset in accordance with the below criteria:
i. the Company’s business model for managing the financial asset and
ii. The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assat.

Based on the above criteria, the Company classifies its financial assets inta the following categories:
| Financial assets measurad at amortized cost

ii. Financlal assets measured at fair value through ather comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

iii. Financlal assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

I, Financial assets measured at amartized cost:

A financial asset is measured at the amartized cost If both the following conditions are met;

a) the Company’s business model objective for managling the financial asset is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

This category applies ta cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets of the Company. Such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest methad.

il. Financial assets measured at FVTOCI:

A financial asset is measured at FVTOC! if both of the following conditions are mat;

- the Company's business model objective for managing the financial asset is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

- The contractual terms of the financlal asset glve rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and Interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

For the above category, income by way of interest and dividend, provision for impairment are recognized in profit or loss and changes In fair value (ather
than on account of above income or expense) are recognized In other comprehensive income and accumulated in other equity. On disposal of such debt

instruments at FVOCI financial assets, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumnulated in other equity Is reclassified to combined Statement of Praofit
and Loss.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes farming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Ill. Financial assets measured at FVTPL:
A financlal asset is measured at FVTPL unless it Is measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as explained above. This is a residual category applied to all

other Investments of the Company excluding investments In assoclate Such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting
date, Fair value changes are recognized in the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition:

A financial asset (ar, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) Is derecognized (i.e, removed from the
Company's Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:

i. The contractual rights to cash flows from the financial asset expires;

il. the Company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset and has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset;

lii. the Company retains the contractual rights to recelve cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows without material delay to
one or more recipients under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement (thereby substantially transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset);

Iv. the Company neither transfers nor retains, substantially all risk and rewards of ownership, and does not retain contral over the financial asset,

On Derecognition of a financial asset, (except as mentlaned In Il above for financial assets measured at FYTOCI), the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration received is recognized in the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which are not measured at FYTPL, Expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal ta the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

= Expected credit losses are the welghted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
recelve (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar optians) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

* The Company measures the loss allowance on financial assets at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit lasses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has Increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit
losses are partion of the lifetime expected credit losses and represent cash shortfalls that will result if default oceurs within the 12 menths weighted by
the prabability of default after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

* When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant Increase In credit risk since Initlal recognition, the Company uses the change in
the risk of a default accurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make
that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial nstrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
oceurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable Infarmatian, that is availgble without
undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables and financial assets arising from transactions with In the scope of Ind AS 115 the Company measures the loss allowance at an
amaunt equal ta lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as
permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes Into account historical credit loss
experience and adjusted for factors that are specific to the debters, general economic conditions of the industry In which the debtors operate and
forward-looking information.

The Company writes off a financial asset when there Is Information indicating that the obligar Is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery.

Financial Liabllitles

Initial recognition and measurement:

The Company recognizes a financial liability in its Balance Sheet when it becomes party to the cantractual provisions of the instrument, Having regards to
the terms and structure of issuance, Financial Liabilities are categorized as follows

{i) recognized at amortised costs

(ii) recognized at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) including the embedded derlvative component if any, which is not separated.

(i) where there is an embedded derivative as part of the financial liability, such embedded derivative is separated and recorded at fair value and the
remaining companent is categorized as on amortised costs.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Subsequent measurement:

(1) Al financial liabilities of the Company are categorized as subsequently measured at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective
Interest method.

() Al financial liabilities of the Company categorized at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss statement,

() For derivatives embedded in the liability, the embedded derivative is subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss and the liability is
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method.

Derecognition: A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

h) Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivative financial contracts, which are initially recognized at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into and
subsequently remeasured to their falr value at the end of each reporting perlod. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in the statement of profit and loss
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument

In a financial Instrument involving embedded derivative, which Is separated from the hast contract, such embedded derivative com ponent is accounted
separately from the underlying host contract and is initially recognized at fair value and is subsequently remeasured at fair value at each reporting period
and the resulting gain or loss Is recognized in the statement of profit and loss unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument,

i) Fair Value

The Company measures financial instruments at falr value in accordance with the accounting policies mentioned above. Fair value is the price that would
be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability In an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement Is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the llability takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
= In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantages market for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities for which falr value is measured or disclosed in the combined financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy
that categorizes into three levels, described as follows, the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the

highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets ar liabilities {Level 1 inputs) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
Inputs),

Level 1 — quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither directly or Indirectly
Level 3 —inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the combined financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whather
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period and discloses the same.

J) Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date

Foreign currency monetary Items of the Company are translated at the closing exchange rates. Non-monetary |tems that are measured at historical cost
in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Nonmanetary ltems that are measured at falr value in a
foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the falr value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

k) Income Taxes
Tax expense is the aggregate amount Included In the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax,

Currant tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reparted in the
Combined Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible in accordance with applicable tax laws.

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts expected ta be recoverad from or paid to
the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the combined financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit under Income tax Act, 1961,

Deferred tax llabllities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, In case of temporary differences that arise from Initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction{other than business cormbination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

deferred tax liabilltles are not recognized. Also, for temporary differences if any that may arise from Initial recognition of goodwill, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognized.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary difference can be utilized. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or

liabilities in a transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax assats are not
recognized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or all of such deferred tax assets to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilitles are measured at the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are
expected to apply to taxable income In the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settied.

The deferred tax assets (net) and deferred tax llabllities [net) are determined separately for the Parent and each subsidiary company, as per their
applicable laws and then aggregated.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the respective group
company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheat date and the carrylng amount of the MAT
credit asset Is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the company will pay narmal income tax during the
specified period.

Presentation of current and deferred tax:

Current and deferred tax are recognized as incorne or an expense in the Combined Statement of Prafit and Loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognized in Other Comprehensive Income, in which case, the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognized in Other Comprehensive
Income,

the Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where |t
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities, the same are offset If the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

1} Provisions and Contingencies

The Company recognizes provisions when a present abligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event exists and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle such obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
peried, taking Into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision Is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present abligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of maney is material).

A disclosure for a contingent liabllity Is made when there is a possible obligation ar a present abligation that may, but probably will not require an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remate, no pravision or disclosure s made.

m) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks
where the original maturity is three months or less.
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Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

n) Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits and they are
recognized in the perlod in which the employee renders the related service, the Company recognizes the undiscounted amount of short term employes
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability {accrued expense) after deducting any amount already paid.

Post-Employment Benefits:

|. Defined contribution plans:

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the Company pays fixed cantributions into state managed retirement benefit
schemes and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributians, if any, If the state managed funds da not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and preceding financial years. the Company’s contributions to defined contribution
plans are recognised in the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss in the financial year to which they relate. The Holding Company and Its Indian
subsidiaries operate defined contribution plans pertaining to Employee State Insurance Scheme and Government administered Pension Fund Scheme for
all applicable employees and the Holding Company operates a Superannuation scheme for eligible employees, A few Indian Subsidiaries also operate
Defined Contribution Plans pertaining to Provident Fund Scheme.

Recognition and measurement of defined contrlbution plans: the Campany recognizes contribution payable to a defined contribution plan as an expense
In the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss when the employees render services to the Company during the reporting period. If the contributions
payable for services received from employees before the reporting date exceeds the contributions already pald, the deficit payable Is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already pald exceeds the contributlon due for services recelved befare the

reporting date, the excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments ar a cash
refund.

Il. Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity is post-employment benefit and is in the nature of defined benefit plan. The liabllity recognized in the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity is the
present value of defined benefit obligation at the Balance Sheet date together with the adjustments for unrecognized actuarial gain or losses and the past
service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated at or near the Balance Sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method.

Recognition and measurement of defined benefit plans:

The cost of providing defined benefits Is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each reporting
date. The defined benefit obligations recognized in the Balance Sheat represent the present value of the defined benefit obligations as reduced by the falr
value of plan assets, if applicable. Any deflned benefit asset (negative deflned benefit abligatians resulting from this calculation) is recognized
representing the present value of avallable refunds and reductions in future contributions to the plan.

All expenses represented by current service cost, past service cost if any and net Interest on the defined benefit llability (asset) are recognized in the
Combined statement of Profit and Loss. Remeasurements of the net defined benefit labllity (asset) comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return
on the plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest an the net defined benefit llability/asset), are recognized In Other Comprehensive Income.
Such remeasurements are not reclassified to the Combined Statement of Profit and Loss in the subsequent periods.

o) Lease accounting

Leases are classifled as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All ather
leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets taken on lease:

In respect of operating leases, lease rentals are recognized as an expense In the Cambined Statement of Profit and Loss on stralght line basis over the
lease term unless

) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the benefit is derived from leased asset; ar

i) The payments te the lessor are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate the lessor's expected Inflationary cost
Increases

In respect of assets obtained on finance leases, assets are recognised at lower of the fair value at the date of acquisition and present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liabllity to the lessor is included in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation. The excess of lease
payments over the recorded lease abligations are treated as “finance charges’ which are allocated to each lease term so as to produce a constant rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations.

p) Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrawings and exchange differences
arlsing from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the Interest cost. Borrowing costs, If any, directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial perlod of time to get ready for Its intended use
or sale are capitalized, if any. All ather borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they accur.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

q) Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the Internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker (CODM) of the
Holding Campany. The CODM is responsible for allacating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments of the Cormpany.

r) Share-based Compensation

The Company recognises compensation expense relating to share-based payments In the net profit using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102, Share-
Based Payment. The estimated fair value of awards Is charged to incame on a straight line basis aver the requisite service period for each separately
vesting portion of the award as if the award was In substance, multiple awards with a corresponding increase to ESOP Reserve.

s) Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes)
by the welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting
attributable taxes) and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive patential
equity shares, Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from
continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been
issued at a later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds recelvable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.
average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined Independently for each period presented.

t) Recent Accounting pronouncements

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified the Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) - 116, Leases effective April 1, 2019. The Company is in the process
of studying the impact on the financlal staterments.

Ind A5 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit /loss, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over incame tax treatments under Ind AS 12, According to the
appendix, companies need to determine the probabllity of the relevant tax authorlty accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatrments that the
companies have to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax
treatment when determining taxable profit / tax loss, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The effective date for adoption of
Ind AS 12 AppendIx C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company |5 evaluating impact of the above amendment.

Amendment of Ind AS 12 — Income taxes in connection with accaunting of dividend distribution - The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensives income or equity according to where the entity originally recognized
those past transactions or events. The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019, The
Company is evaluating the impact of the above.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

2.1 KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires the management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and llabllities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclasure of contingent liabilities, Uncertainty
about these assumptions and estimates cauld result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets ar liabllities affectad
In future periods,

Critical accounting estimates and assumptlons

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertalnty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment te the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financlal year, are described below:

- Property, Plant and Equipment

The charge In respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value
atthe end of its life. The lives are based on historical experlence with similar assets and are based on changes in technical or commercial ohsolescence.

- Defined Benefit Obligation

The costs are assessed on Lhe basis of assumptions selected by the management. These assumptions include salary escalation rate, discount rates,
expected rate of return on assets and mortality rates.

- Fair value measurement of Financial Instruments
When the fair values of financials assets and financial liabilities recorded In the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in actlve

markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigues, including the discounted cash flow model, which involve various judgements and
assumptions.

- Expacted Credit Loss
The provision for expected credit loss invalves estimating the probability of default and lass given default based on the past experience and other factors.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Naotes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 3. Flrst time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has prepared opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2017 (transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities
whose recognition is required by Ind AS, derecognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted to be recognised by Ind AS,
reclassifying items from 1-GAAP to Ind AS as required, and applying Ind AS to measure the recognised assets and liabilities. The exemptions

avalled hv the Coamnany are as fallaws:

() The Company has adopted the carrying value determined in accordance with I-GAAP for all of its property plant and equipment and
intangible assets as deemed cost of such assets at the transition date,

(i) The Company has applied the impairment requiremants of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that financial
instruments were initially recognised In order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date, Further, as permitted by Ind AS 101,
the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for Information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether
there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

Equity Raconcilation

(% in Mn)

Particulars As at 1st Aprll 2017 As at 31st March 2018 Notes
As per |GAAP 975.90 1,273.16
Fair value of investments 3.50 4.96 1
ESOP Compensation Cost (4.25) (6.93)
Deferred tax impact on above adjustments (1.21 (1.44) 3
As per Ind AS 5973.94 1,269.75
Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Incame

{T in Mn)
Particulars As at 315t March 2018 Notes
Net income under Indian GAAP 297.25
Change In fair value of investments 1.46 1
Actuarial gain/ loss recognised in other comprehensive
Income 2.66 4
ESOP Compensation Cost (2.67) 2
Deferred tax Impact on abave adjustments (1.01) 3
Nat Income as per Ind AS 297.69
Other Comprehensive Incame [1.89) 4
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS 235.80




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Effect of ind AS adoption on the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018 ® in Mnj
As at March 31, 2018
Sr.
| _No. |Particulars As per IGAAP Ind AS adjustmants Asperind AS | Notes

ASSETS

1 [Financial Assets

(a) |Cash and cash equivalents 2897 28.97
{b) |Receivables - .
{l) Trade receivables 192.23 192.23
{11} Other recelvables 1.12 1.12
(c} |Loans 1,132.55 1,132.55
{d} _]Investments 18.22 4.96 23.18 1
(e) _|Other financial assets 139.20 139.20
2 |Non-Financial Assets
{a) [Current tax assets {net) 59.57 59,57
|b) [Deferred tax assets [net) 5.43 (1.44) 3,98 3
(c) [Property, plant and equipment 0.17 017
(d) _[Capital work-in-progress 6.32 6.32
(&) [Other intangible assets 14.13 14.13
() _|Other non-financial assets 71.90 71.90
Total Assets 1,669.81 3.52 1,673.33
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1__|Financial Liabilities
(a) |Payables
Trade payables
(i} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises -
(i) total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 159.84 155.84
(b) |Borrowings (other than debt securities) 175.00 175.00
{c) |Other financial liabilities 13.53 6.93 20,46 2
2_|Non-Financial Liabilities
{8) |Current tax liabilities (net) 1,63 1.63
{b) |Provisions 18.61 19.61
{c)_|Other non-financial liabilities 27.04 27.04
3 |EQUITY
(a) _|Equity share capital 321.00 321.00
[b) |Other equity 952.16 (3.41) 948.75
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,669.81 3.52 1,673.33




HIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2019

Effect of ind AS adoptlon on the Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2017 (% in Mn)
As at April 1, 2017
Sr.
No. |Particulars As per IGAAP Ind AS adjustments Asperind A5 | Notes
ASSETS
1 _|Financial Assets
{a) |Cash and cash equivalents 897.53 89753
(b) [Receivables -
(1) Trade receivables 199.25 189.25
(1) Other receivables 0.12 0.12
[c) |Loans 20.98 20.98
(d) [Investments 18.17 3.50 2167 1
| _(e) |Other financial assets 0.01 0.01
2 |Non-Financial Assets
(a) [Current tax assets (net) 41,84 41.84
{b) |Deferred tax assets (net) 4.59 {1.21) 3.38 3
[c) |Property, plant and equipment 0.27 0.27
{e) |Other intangible assets 0.82 0.82
{f) _|Other non-financial assets 1.99 1,99
Total Assets 1,185.57 2.29 1,187.8B6
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
1__ |Financial Liabilities
| _(a) |Payables
Trade payablas
(i} total cutstanding dues of micre enterprises and
small enterprises g 2
{ii) total outstanding dues of creditars ather than
micro enterprises and small enterprises 111.19 111.19
(k) _|Other financial liabilities 52,74 4.25 56.99 2
2 __|Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) _|Provisions 14.72 14.72
(b) _|Other non-financial liahilities 31.02 31.02
3 |EQUITY
(3) |Equity share capital 321.00 321.00
(b} |Other equity 654.90 (1.96) 652.94
Total Liabilities and Equity 1,185.57 2.29 1,187.86
Notes

1. As per IGAAP, Investments were valued at lower of Cost and Market Value. However as per Ind AS, Investments classified at Fair value
through Profit and loss are to recognised at Fair Value and hence the Company has restated its investments to reflect the market value and
correspnding impact being taken to Statemeant of Profit and Loss .

2. ESOP charge Is accounted for using fair value method. The portion of ESOP charge payable to holding company is accordingly measured
and recognised at fair value. Under I-GAAP ESOP charge was calculated based on Intrinsic value method,

3. Deferred tax Is the tax impact of all the adjustments between IGAAP and Ind AS.

4, Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to defined benefit cbligations and re-measurement pertaining to return on plan assets are
recognisad in Other Comprehenslve Income in accordance with Ind AS 19 and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

5. The Company has adjusted on Apr 1, 2017 (the transition date) IGAAP numbers. Asseéts and Liabilities as per IGAAP are reconciled with

numbers as per Ind A5 by reclassification or as required by Ind AS and applving Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities,
6. There Is no Impact on Cash Flow due to first time adoption of Ind AS.




a)

b)

€)
d}

IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

® in Mn)
Particulars As at Mar 31,2019 | AsatMar 31, 2018 | As at Apr 01, 2017
Cash and Cash Equivalents {As per Ind AS 7 Statement of
Cashflows)
Cash on hand 0.22 0.60 0.01
Cheques in hand 0.03 - -
Balance with banks
- In current accounts 3.20 28.37 527.48
In Deposit accounts (with ariginal maturity of three months
of lass) - 370,04
Cash and cash equivalents (As per Ind AS 7 Statement of
Cashflows) 3.45 28.97 897.53
Mote 5. Receivables (% in Mn)

Particulars

As at Mar 31, 2019

(i} Trade receivables

As at Mar 31, 2018

As at Apr 01, 2017

Receivables considered good - Secured

Receivables considered good - Unsecured 422,12 192.23 199,25
Total (i)- Gross 422,12 192.23 199.25
Less: Impairment loss allowance . - E
Total {i)- Net 422,12 192.23 199,25
{ii)_Other receivables

Receivables considered good - Secured - - -

Receivables considered good - Unsecured 1.07 1.12 0.12
Total {ii)- Gross 1.07 1.12 0.12
Less: Impairment loss allowance - . -
Total (il)- Net 1,07 112 0.12

No trade or other receivables are due from directars or from other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any
ather person nor any trade or other receivables are due from firms ar private companies respectively in which any directars Is a
partner, director or a member as at 31st March 2019, 31st March 2018, 1st April 2017,

There are na trade recievables with significant increase in credit risk (SICR) as at 31st March 2018, 315t March 2018, 1st April

2017.

There are na credit impaired receivables as at 31st March 2019, 31st March 2018, 1st April 2017,
No trade recelvables and other receivables are interest bearing.
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IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the yaar endad March 31, 2019

(T in Mn
Investments at FVTPL As ot March 31, 2019 As it March 31, 2018 As at Api 01, 1017 ;
Name of Invastment No. of Units Total Amsunt No. of Units Total Amoumt Na, of Up|_l._l__ Total Amaunt
Investmant In Mutual Funds include ;
IIFL CAPITAL ENCHANCER FUND = SERIES 1 - DIRECT - GROWTH 500,000.00 5.27 - . - <
IIFL DYNAMIC BOND FUND DIRECT PLAN - GROWTH 563,624.61 .58 563,624.61 8.04 553,125.51 7.45
IIFL FOCUSSED EQUITY FUND - DIRECT PLAN - GROWTH 533,061.45 B.89 - . L .
IIFL INDIA GROWTH FUND - DIRECT PLAN - GROWTH . - 533,063.45 7.71 533,063.45 7.23
IIFL LIQUID FUND - DIRECT PLAN - GROWTH 4,769.07 6.98 4,769.07 .53 4,763.07 6.14
972 7137 20,82
Invastment in Equity Instrument include : |
MF UTILITIES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 500,000 0.50 500,000 0.50 500,000 0.50
0.50 0.50 0.50
Invastment in Altermate investment funds include :
IIFL ASSET REVIVAL FUND SERIES 2 = CLASS C UNITS 3 2,500.00 0.03 2,500,00 0,03
IIFL ASSET REVIVAL FUND SERIES 3 - CLASS C UNITS - - 2,500.00 0,03 2,500.00 0,02
IIFL BEST OF CLASS FUND 1 - ELASS C UNITS £ . 2,500,00 0.01 2,500.00 0.02
IIFL BEST OF CLASS FUND Il - CLASS C UNITS . - 2,500.00 0.03 2,500.00 0.02
IIFL CASH QPPORTUNITIES FUND - CLASS CUNITS - - 100.00 4,01 100.00 0,01
|IFL NATIGNAL DEVELOPMENT AGENDA FUND - CLASS C UNITS - - . 9,466,56 0.09
IIIFL INVESTMENT OFPORTUNITIES FUND - SPECIAL ‘JERI_ES 1 - 3 . £ A,SIMQ 002
|£FL INCOME OPPORTUNITIES FUND SERIES - SPECIAL SITUATIONS - CLASS B UN| 1,684.61 0.01 1,684,61 0.01 1,684,61 .01
IIFL LONG TERM GROWTH FUND | - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2,500.00 0.03 - =
[FL PHOENIX CasH OPPORTLINITIES FUND - CLASS C UNITS - - 1,500.00 0,02 2.500.00 0.8
|_ILI'-I. REAL ESTATE FUND DOMESTIC SERIES 1 - CLASS B UNITS - . - - 230.00 0.00#
IIFL REAL ESTATE FUND DOMESTIC SERIES 2 - CLASS C UNITS 2,370.00 02,02 2,370.00 0.02 2,370.00 0.02
[IIFL REAL ESTATE FUND DOMESTIC SERIES 4 - CLASS CUNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2,500.00 a.03 2,500.00 0.02
IIFL SEED VENTURES FUND 1 - CLASS € UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2,500,00 0.03 2,500,00 0.03
|FF|. SPECIAL OFPORTUNITIES FUND - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2,500.00 0.03 -
[IIFL SPECIAL QPPORTUNITIES FUND - SEMIES 2 - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2,500.00 0.03 .
|||FL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 3 - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2.500,00 0.03 - .
[IIFL SPECIAL OPFORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 4 - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 .03 2,500.00 0.03 - -
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES & - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2,500.00 0,08 . =
IIFL SPECIAL OPPORTUNITIES FUND - SERIES 7 - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 2,500.00 0.03 - .
IIFL YIELD ENHANCER FLIND - CLASS D UNITS 2,500.00 0.01 2,500.00 0,01 2,500.00 0,03
INDIA HOUSING FUND - CLASS B UNITS 2,500.00 0.03 __2,500,00 0.03 - .
0.29 0.41 0.35
Total 30.51 23.18 21.67

it Amount less than T 10,000.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 8. Other financial assets

(¥ in Mn)
Partlculars As at Mar 31, 2019 | AsatMar 31, 2018 | Asat Apr 01, 2017
Other deposits 0.04 0.03 -
Incame accrued & due - 0.07 -
Advances to Group/Holding company 4.12 139.10 0.01
Receivable from Employees 0.01 - L
Total 4.17 139.20 0.01

Note 9. Deferred Taxes

Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet and changes recorded In Income tax
expense for the year anded March 31, 2019 are as follows:

(T In Mn)
Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
balance as at Apr 1, |in profitor in/reclassifled balance as at
2018 loss fram OCI Mar 33_.‘_21115
Deferred tax assets:
Difference between book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment, Investment
property and intangible assets 058 {0.08) : 0.50
Retirement benefits for employees 4.86 (0.17) 0.44 5.13
Total deferred tax assets (A) 5.44 (0.25) 0.44 5.63
Deferred tax liabilities: . 5 -
Unreallsed profit on investrnents etc. {1.45) {0.72) - (2.17)
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) {1.45) (0.72) - (2.17)
Deferred tax assets (A - B) 3.99 {0.97) 0.44 3.46
Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2018 are as follows:
(% in Mn)
Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
balance as at Apr 1, |in profit or in/reclassified balance as at
2017 loss from OCI Mar 31, 2018
Deferred tax assets:
Gifference beiween book base and tax base
of property, plant & equipment, Investment
property and intangible assets 0.99 (0.41) - 0.58
Retirement benefits for employees 3.60 0.48 0.78 4.86
Total deferred tax assets (A) 4.60 0.07 0.78 5.44
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unrealised profit on investments etc. {1.21) {0.24) - {1.45)
Total deferred tax liabilities (B) {1.21) (0.24) - (1.45)
Deferred tax assets (A - B) 3.38 (0.17) 0.78 3.99




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 10. Property Plant and Equipment

® inMn)

Particulars Furniture Office Computers Total
Fixture Equipment
Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2018 0.01 0.17 0.09 0.27
Additions - - - -
Deductions/ Adjustments during the year = - - -
As at March 31, 2019 0.01 0.17 0.09 0.27
Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2018 0.01 0.06 0.03 0.10
Depreciation for the year - 0.06 0.03 0.09
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - - - -
Upto March 31, 2019 0.01 0.12 0.06 0.19
Net Block as at March 31, 2019 - 0.05 0.03 0.08
Previous year 2017-18 (X in Mn)
Particulars Fumitare Office Computers Taotal
Fixture Equipment

Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2017* 0.01 0.17 0.09 0.27
Additions - - -
Deductions/ Adjustments during the year - - - 3
As at March 31, 2018 0.01 0.17 0.09 0.27
Depreciation
Upto April 01, 2017 - - - -
Depreciation for the year 0.01 0.06 0.03 0.10
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - - - -
Upto March 31, 2018 0.01 0.06 0.03 0.10
Net Block as at March 31, 2018 - 0.11 0.06 0.17

*Refer Note 3 for exemptions availed




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Nates forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 11. Capltal Work-in-Progress:

(T in Mn)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019
As at April 01, 2018 6.32
Additions N
Deductions :

As at March 31, 2019 6.32
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2018
As at April 01, 2017 F
Additions 6.32
Deductions i

As at March 31, 2018 6.32
Note 12. Other Intangible Assets

Particulars li in Mn)
Software/Intangible assets

Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2018 16.93
Additions 2.46
Deductions / adjustments during the year -

As at March 31, 2019 19.39
Amortisation

Upto April 01, 2018

Op. Dap. on acquisition 2.80
Amartisation for the year 6.09
Deductions / adjustments during the year -
Upto March 31, 2019 8.89
|Net Block as at March 31, 2019 10.50
Previous year 2017-18

Particulars (% in Mn)
Software/intangible assets

Gross Carrying value as on April 01, 2017* 0.82
Additions 16.11
Deductions / adjustrments during the year "
As at March 31, 2018 16.93
Amortlsation

Upto April 01, 2017

Op. Dep. on acqulsition -
Amortisation for the year 2.80
Deductions / adjustments during the year -
Upto March 31, 2018 2.80
Net Block as at March 31, 2018 14.13

*Refer Note 3 for exemptions availed




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 13. Other Non Financial Assets

(T in Mn)

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 | Asat Mar 31, 2018 | Asat Apr 01, 2017
Prepaid expenses - Unsecured 132.80 72.00 Q.75
Adva.m:es recoverable In cash or in kind or for value to be 6.97 (0.14) 103
received = Linsecured
Employee advance against expenses 0.07 0.04 0.21
Total 139.84 71.80 1.99
Note 14, Payables T in Mn)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 | As at Mar 31, 2018 | Asat Apr 01, 2017
Trade payables

(i)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small ; i

enterprises (Refer note 14.1) b

i | i ther th

(ii)Tatal outstanding dues of cj'redutnrs other than micro 115.53 159.84 111.19

enterprises and small enterprises
Tatal 115,53 159.84 111.19

14.1. Disclosure under The Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006

The following disclosure is made as per the requirement under the Micre, Small and Meadlum Enterprises Development Act,

2016 (M5MED) on the basls of confirmations sought from suppliers on registration with the specified authority under MSMED:;

(T in Mn)

Particulars

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

{a) Princlpal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the year end

{b) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier
at the year end

(€) Amount of interest paid and payments made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

(d) Amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the Interest specified under the Act

(#) Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at
the vear end

{f) Amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Act

There are no amounts due to the suppliers covered under Micro, $mall and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. This
information takes into account only those suppliers who have responded ta the enquiries made by the Company far this
purpose. This has been relied upon by the auditars. No interest is payable in respect of the same.
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IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 16. Other Financial Liabilities

® in Mn)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 | As at Mar 31, 2018 | As at Apr 01, 2017
Payable to holding co / group companies 19.63 19.18 56.99
Others 0.17 1.28 -
Total 19.80 20.46 56.99
Note 17. Provisions:

(% in Mn)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 | As at Mar 31, 2018 | Asat Apr 01, 2017
Provislan for employee benefits
- Gratuity 17.58 13.09 11.32
- Compensated absences - 6.52 3.40
Total 17.58 19.61 14.72
Note 18. Other Non Financlal Liabilities:

(¥ in Mn)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 | As at Mar 31, 2018 | As at Apr 01, 2017
Revenue received in advance = - 17.08
Statutary remittances 51.76 27.04 13.94
Total 51.76 27.04 31.02




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes ferming part of Financial 5tatements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 19. Share Capital:

(T inmn)

(a) The authorised, issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capltal comprises of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2/- as follows:
Ag at Mar 31, 2018

Authorised :

As at Mar 31, 2019

As at Apr 01, 2017

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amaunt Na. of shares Amount
Equity Shares of T 10 each 32,500,000 325.00 32,500,000 EE,DD 32,500,000 325.00
Issued, Subscribed and Pald Up:
Equity Shares of 710 each fully paid 32,100,000 321.00| 32,100,000 321.00 32,100,000 321.00
Total 321.00 321.00 321.00
(b)  Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting perlod.

Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018 As at Apr 01, 2017

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 32,100,000 321.00 32,100,000 321.00 32,100,000 321.00
Add: |ssued during the year a i X P i I
Dutstanding at the end of the year 32,100,000 321.00 32,100,000 321.00 32,100,000 321.00

(¢) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of T 10/- each. Each halder of equity shares is entitled ta
one vole per share. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General

Meeting, except In case of Interim dividend,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entltled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after

distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion ta the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{d) __ Details of shares held by Ultimate Holding Company:
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018 As at Apr 01, 2017

No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding No. of shares % holding
IIFL Wealth Management Limited & its
nominees 32,100,000 100% 31:%000 100%] 32,100,000 100%
{e) __Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Helding Company:
Par ity As at Mar 11, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018 As at Apr 01, 2017

No. of shares % halding No. of shares % holdlm No. of shares % holding
IIFL Wealth Management Limited & its
nominees 32,100,000 100% 32,100,000 100% 32,100,000 100%

{f)  During the period of 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date, the Company has not Issued any equity shares without payment
being received In cash, bonus shares and has not bought back any equity shares.

Note 20, Other Equity:

(¥ in Mn)
AsatMar31, | AsatApr0i,
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 2018 2017
Securities premium 204.00 204.00 204.00
Retained earnings 1,338.68 744.75 448.94
Total 1,542.68 948.75 652,94




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 21. Fee and Commilssion Income

(T in Mn)
Particualrs 2018-19 2017-18
Management fees from Mutual fund 73.15 35.40
Management fees from AIF and VCF 966.04 529.40
Management fees from clients 133.88 50.23
TOTAL 1,173.07 6515.03
Note 22. Dividend & Distribution income on investments
(X in Mn})
Particualrs 2018-19 2017-18
Dividend Income 0.24 1.29
Distribution income on investments 249.53 204,54
TOTAL 249.77 205.83
Note 23. Other Income (¥ in Mn)
Particulars 2018-15 2017-18
Interest Income 129.32 86.30
Fair value changes of investments:
-Realised 27.50 123,20
-Unrealised 245 1.45
Total 159.27 210.95
Note 24. Finance Cost
(¥ in Mn)
2018-19 2017-18
On financlal On financial
liabilities On financial liabilitles On financial
Particulars liabilities measured at liabllities
measured at fair Taotal Total
valus throtgh measured at fair value measured at
srofitof lass amortised cost through profit |amortised cost
or loss
Interest on borrowings - 1.20 1.20 - 5.23 5,23
Total = 1.20 1.20 = 5.23 5.23
Note 25. Employee Benefit Expenses
(% in Mn)
Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Salaries and wages 376.51 283,68
Contribution to provident and other funds 9.82 5.90
Share based payments to employees 1.95 2.68
staff welfare expenses 11.69 292
Gratuity expense 3.40 0.89
Leave encashment (4.39) 358
Total 358.598 299.65




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes farming part of Financial Statemants for the year ended March 31, 2019

25.1. Gratuity Abridged Disclosure Statement as Per Indian Accounting Standard 19 (Ind AS 19)

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Type of benafit Gratuity Gratuity
Country Indla India
Reparting currency INR INR

Reporting standard

Indian Accounting
Standard 19 (Ind A5 19)

Indian Accounting
Standard 19 {Ind AS 19)

Funding status Unfunded Unfunded
Starting perlod 01-Apr-18 01-Apr-17
Date of reporting 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Period of reporting 12 Months 12 Months
Assumptions (previous period)
Expected return on plan assets N.A. N.A.
Rate of discounting 7.80% 7.27%
Rate of salary increase 7.50% 5.00%
For service 4 years and | For service 4 years and
Rate of employee turnover below 15% p.a. & below 7.50% p.a. &
thereafter 7.50% p.a. thereafter 5% p.a
Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Wiortality fte duning smployment Mortality (2006-08) | Maortality (2006-08)
Mertality rate after employment N.A. N.A.
Assumptions (current period)
Expected return on plan assets N.A, N.A.
Rate of discounting 7.64% 7.80%
Rate of salary increase 7.50% 7.50%

Rate of employee turnover

For service 4 years and
below 15% p.a, &
thereafter 7.50% p.a.

For service 4 years and
below 15% p.a. &
thereafter 7.50% p.a.

Mortality rate during employment

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)

Indian Assurad Lives
Martality (2006-08)

Mortality rate after employment

N.A,

N.A,

Table showing change in the present value of projected benefit obligation

Present value of banefit obligation at the beginning of the perlod

13.09 11.32
Interast cost 1.02 0.82
Current service cost 2.38 2.16
Liability transferred in/ acquisitions 0.54 0.17
| (Liability transferred out/ divestments) (0.59) (0.76)
{Benefit paid directly by the employer) (0.368) (1.20)
Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligations - due to change In
s 0.22 1,05
financial assumptions
Actuarial {gains)/losses on obligations - due to experience 1.29 1.26
Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period 1758 13.09
Amaunt recognized in the balance sheet
(Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the period) (17.58) (13.09)
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period - -
Funded status {surplus/ (deficit)) {17.58) (13.09)
Net (liability)/asset recagnized in the balance sheet (17.58) (13.09)




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018

Net interest cost for current perlod

Present value of benefit obligation at the beginning of the period 13.09 11.32
(fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period) - B
Net liability/(asset) at the beginning 13.09 11.32
Interest cost 1.02 0.82
(Interest income) - -
Net interest cost for current period 1.02 0.82
Expenses recognized in the statement of profit or loss for current period

Current service cost 2.38 2.16
Net interest cost 1.02 0.82
Past service cost - (2.09)
Expenses recognized 3.40] 0.89
Expenses recognized in the other comprehensive income {OC) for current period

Actuarial (gains)/losses on obligation for the period 1.51 2.67
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income - -
Net (income)/expense for the period recognized in ocl 1.51 2,67
Balance sheet reconclliation

Qpening net liability 13.09 11.32
Expenses recognized in statement of profit or loss 3.40 0.89
Expenses recognized in ocl 1.51 2.67
Net liability/(asset) transfer in 0.54 0.17
Net (liability)/asset transfer out {0.60) (0.76)
(Benefit paid directly by the employer) (0.36) (1.20)
Net liability/(asset) recognized in the balance sheet 17.58 13.09
QOther details

No of active members 104 98
Per month salary for actlve members 11.38| 7.77
Weighted average duration of pbo 9.44 9.00
Average expected fs 8.45 8.00
Projected benefit obligation (pbo) 17.58 13.09
Prescribed contribution for next year (12 months) - -
Maturity analysis of the benefit payments
1st following year 1.31 1.15
2nd following year 1.36 1.04
3rd following year 1.44 1.06
4th following year 1.56 1.14
Sth following year 1.62 117
Sum of years 6 to 10 7.67 5.56
Sum of years 11 and above 22.57 17.54
Sensitivity analysls -

PBO on current assumptions 17.58 13.09
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of discounting (1.29) (0.96)
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of discounting 1.48 1.10
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of salary increase 0.80 0.64
Delta effect of -1% change In rate of salary increase {0.80) (0.62)
Delta effect of +1% change in rate of employee turnover 0.22 0.18
Delta effect of -1% change in rate of employee turnover (0.26) (0.22)

The abave mentioned plans are valued by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

25.2 Defined Contribution Plans:

The Group has recognised the following amounts as an expense and included in the Employee Benefit Expenses.

(X In Mn)
Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Contribution to provident fund 5.89 4.36
Contribution to ESIC 0.01 0.00
Contribution te labour welfare fund 0.004# 0.00#
Total 5.90 4.36

# Amount less than ¥ 10,000.

The Company contributes to recognised provident fund for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is
required to contribute specified percentage of payroll costs to fund the benefits.

Note 26, Other Expenses:-

(T inMn)
Particulars As at Mar 31, 2019 As at Mar 31, 2018
Operations and Fund Management expensas 24.30 31.74
Rent and energy cost 30.52 19.38
Insurance 0.46 2.14
Repairs & Maintenance 0.40 0.27
Marketing, Advertisement and Business promation expenses 31.47 23.21
Travelling & Conveyance 16.06 13.44
Legal & professional fees 11.28 25.14
Communication 4.26 3.30
Software Charges / Technology Cost 19.73 15.60
Office & Other Expenses 52.17 56.40
Directors' fees and commission 2.84 2.72
Remuneration to Auditors :
Audit Fees (net of G5T input credit) 0.45 0.40
Other services (net of GST input credit) 0.30 0.30
Goods & Service tax 0.00# 0.01
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenses & Donation (Refer Note 31) 5.79 4.24
Total 200.03 198.29

# Amount less than € 10,000.




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial 5tatemants for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 27. Income taxes
Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes"

(a) Majar components of tax expense/ (incoma)
(% in Mn)
Sr. No. Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
Statement of Profit and Loss:
(a) Profit and Loss section:
(i) Current Income tax :
Current income tax expense 130.64 36.00
Tax expense in respect of earlier yaars 0.10 o
130.74 36.00
(i) Deferred Tax;
Tax expense on origination and reversal of temporary differences 0.97 017
0.97 017
Income tax expense reparted in the statement of profit or loss [{i}+(ii)] 131.71 36.17
(b} Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section:
(i) Items not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Deferred tax expense/(income);
- On re-measurement of defined benefit plans 0.44 0.78
0.44 0.78
Income tax expense reported In the other comprehensive income [(i)+{ii)] 0.44 0.78
(b) Reconclliation of Income tax expense and accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate applicable in India:
(T In Mn)
5r. No. Particulars 2018-19 2017-18
(a) Profit/(loss) before tax 726.70 333.86
(b) Income tax expense at tax rates applicable to individual entities 211.62 115.54
(c) (i) Tax on income subject to lower tax rate
{A) Gains on Investments (including fair valuation) (0.29) (72.44)
(d) (i) Tax on Income exempt from Tax
(A) Income from Investments (Including tax sufferred income on investment in AlF) (79.84) (11.78)
(lii) Tax on expense not tax deductible
(B) Expenses not allowable as tax deductible as per tax laws 0.84 2.52
(iv) Effect on deferred tax due to change In Income tax - 0.73
(v) Tax effect on various other items (0.62) 1.59
Total effect of tax adjustments [(i) to (v)] (79.91) (79.38)
(e) Tax expense recognised during the year 131.71 36.16
Effective tax rate 18.12% 10.83%




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Nates forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 28. Earnings Per Share:

Basic and diluted earnings per share ["EF5"] computed in accordance with IND AS 33 ‘Earnings per share'.

Particulars

2018-19 2017-18
BASIC
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (Z in Mn) A 594.99 297.69
Weighted average number of shares subscribed B 32,100,000 32,100,000
Face value of equity shares (in ) fully paid 10.00 10.00
Basic EPS (%) A/B 18.54 9.27
DILUTED
Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (T in Mn) A 594,99 297.68
Weighted average number of shares subscribed B 32,100,000 32,100,000
Diluted EPS (3) A/B 18.54 9.27




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Note 29, Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial instruments: Disclosures”
Financial Risk Management

29A.1, Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual sbligations resulting in financial less to the Company, Credit rlsk assessement is
described below:

1) Trade and other receivables
The Company's trade receivables primarily include receivables from mutual funds, alternative Investment funds, customers under Partfalio Mnaagement

scheme and Advisory services arrangements. The Company has made lifetime expected eredit loss provision based on provision matrix which takes inte
aceount historical experience in collection and credit losses.

2) Others
In addition ta the above, balances and deposits with banks, investments in bands, debt securities and In units of funds, derivative financial instruments and
other financial assets also have exposure to credit risk.

Credit risk on balances and deposits with banks is limited as these balances are generally held with banks and financial Institutions with high ¢redit ratings
and/or with capital adequacy ratic above the preseribed regulatory limits.,

The eredit risk in respact of investments In bonds, debt securities and in units of funds classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss is priced in the fair
value of the respective instruments. Investment transactions are transacted on exchanges with eentral tounterparties or entered inte under International
Swaps and Derivatives Association {ISDA) master netting agreements, In general, under these agreernents, in certain circumstances — e.g. when a credit
event such as a default occurs = all outstanding transactions under the agreement with the counterparty are terminated, the termination value is 3ssassed
and only a single net amaunt is due or payable in settlement of all transactions with the counterparty.

Cradit Risk on Other Financlal assets is considered very low as the counterparty Is mainly stock exchanges,

298, Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that tha Company may not be able ta meet its short-term financial obligations. The Company manages liquidity risk by
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and by having aceess to funding through an adequate amount of credit lines. Further, The Company
has well defined Asset Liability Managemant (ALM) Framework with an apprapriate organizational structure to regularly monitor and manage maturity
profiles of financial assets and financial liabilitles Including debt financing plans, cash and cash equivalent instruments to ensure liquidity. The Company

seeks to maintain flexibility in funding mix by way of sourcing the funds through money markets, debt markets and banks to meet Its businass and liguidity
requirements.

The following table shows the maturity profile of Financial liabilities:

As at 31st March 2019
Financial liabilities Tatal Lass than 1 menths | '";:L:;:“ ® | &monthsto1year
Trade Payables 11553 115.26 0.27 -
Other financial iabilities 19.80)] 19,62 0.18 .
Total 135.33 134_._85 0.45 =

As at 315t March 2018

i 1monthsto &

Financial liabilities Total Less than 1 months il & months to 1 year
Trade Payables 159.84 122.94 36,80 -
Barrowings 175.00 175.00 - F
Other financial liabilities 20.46 20.46 = a
Tatal 355.30 318.40/ 36.90 -

As at 01st April 2017

Financial liabilities Total Lass than 1 months 1 mn:::::;:n ¥ 6 months to 1 year
|Trade Payables 11118 78.31 32.89 3
Other financial liabilities 56.98/ 56,99 o -
Total 168.18) 135.30 32.89 =

29C. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of any loss In future earnings, in realizable fair values or in futures cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial
instrumant,




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 29. Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financlal Instruments: Diselosures” (continued)

29C.1 Currency Risk
The Company does not run a proprietary trading position in foreign currencles and foreign currency denaminated instruments.However the group does
have some exposure to forelgn currencies through its business operations or by malnitaing cash balance and Fixed deposits In currencies ather than
reporting/functional currencles.
The carrying amount of Financial assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk for FY 2018-2019 are as below:
(T in Mn)

Particulars | usp |
Trade recaivables | 8.17 |

A hypothetical 1% appreciation/(depreciation) of the respective foreign currencies with respect to functional currencies of the company would result in
increase/decrease in the Companys net profit before tax by approximately T 0.08 mn,

29C.2 Interest rate risk
The Company has measured interest rate risk sensitivity on financial assets and liabilities 6n financial instruments accounted for an amartised cost basis.
The Company’s exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Company's outstanding floating rate debt and lending. The risk is managed by
the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrawings and by the use of Interest rate swap contracts,

25C.3. Other Price Risk (including Equity Linked Investments)
Other price risk is related to the change in market reference price of the derivative financial instrumants, Investments and debt securities which are fair
valued and exposes the Company to price risks.

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities subject to price risk is as balow:

Particulars As at 31st March 2019| As at 313t March 2018| Asat 01st April 2017

Financial Assets

Investments 30.51 2318 21.67
30.51 23.18 2167

A hypothetical 100 basis point shift in the benchmark rate will have impact on the profit and Ioss as below:

2018.19 2017-18

Increase of 100 basis point

Impact an Profit and Loss after tax 0.22 0.15

Impact on Equity 0.22 0.15

Decrease of 100 basis point

impact on Profit and Loss after tax (0.22) {0.15)

| Impact on Equity (0.22) {0.15)

29D.Capital Management
The Company’s capital management Is Intended to create value for shareholders, The assessment of Capital level and requirements are assessed having
regard to long-and short term strategies of the Company and regulatery capital requirements of its businesses and canstituent entities.

29E, Category Wise Classifieation for applicable Financlal Assets and Liabllitles

As at 31st March 2019
Easured al 1air

5r No. Particulars Measured at fair value through
Measure at value through profit other
amar|sed eost or lass{P/L) comprehensive Total

Financial Assats
{a) [Cash and cash equivalents 345 - = 3.45

{b) |Receivables -
1} Trade recelvables 422.12 . - 422,12
1l) Other receivables 1.07 - 1.07 |

(e) |Loans 1,402.48 1,402.48 |

(d) [Investmants . 30.51 - 30.51

(o) |Othaer financlal assets 4,17 - - 4.17
Total 1,833.29 30.51 - 1,863.81
Financial Liabilities

(a) |Payables -
- Trade payables 115.53 z 115.53

{b) |Other financial liabilities 19.80 - - 10.80
Total 135.33 135.33




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes farming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 29. Disclosure Pursuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” {continued)

As at 31st March 2018
Easured at falr
Sr No, Particulars Measured at fair valua through
Measure at value thraugh profit other
amorised cost or loss{P/L) comprehensive Total
Finantial Assets
(a) |Cash and cash eguivalants 28.97 - . 28.97
{b) |Receivablas -
(1) Trade receivables 192.23 = = 192.23
(1) Other receivables 1.12 . - 1.12
() |Loans 1,132.55 1,132.55
{d) |Investmants . 23.18 & 23.18
{e} |Other financial assets 139,20 - - 139.20
Total 1,494.07 2318 # 1,517.25
Finaneial Liabilities
(a) |Payables
- Trade payables 159.84 : - 159.84
|_{b) |Borrowings 175.00 . - 175.00
{c] |Other financial liabilities 20.46 - - 2046
Tatal 355.30 = = 355.30
As at D1st April 2017
MEszarad at fair
Sr No. Particulars Maueasured at fair value through
Measure at value through profit other
amarised cost or loss(P/L) comprehensive Total
Financial Assets
(a) ICash and cash equivalents 897.53 . - 897,53
(b) |Receivables
{I) Trade receivables 189.25 - . 199.25
{11} Other receivahlas 0.12 - - 0.12
(c) floans 20.98 20.98
(d) Jinvastments - 21,67 - 21.67
(8) Jother financial assets 0.01 - - 0.01
Tatal 1,117.89 11@7_ = 1,139.56
Financial Liabilitias
(a) |Payables
- Trade payables 111.19 . = 111.19
(b} JOther financlal liabilities 56.99 . - 56.99 |
Tatal 168.18 - - 168.18 |

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

The earrying amounts of trade racelvables, loans, advanees and cash and othar bank balances are considered to be the same as their fair values due to
their short term nature.

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost:
The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be the same as their fair values due to their shart term nature. The carrying amaunts
of borrowings with floating rate of interest are considered to be close to the fair value,
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Note 29. Disclosure Pursuant to ind A5 107 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” (continued)

29E.1. Falr values of financlal Instruments

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance of the Inputs used in making the measurements.
= Level 1; Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical instrumants, This include NAVS of the schemes of mutual funds.
= Level : Inputs other than quated prices included within Lovel 1 that are observable either directly (i.e, as prices) or Indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
This category includes Instruments valued using: quoted market prices in actlve markets for similar instruments; quated prices far identical or similar
instruments In markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation tachniques in which all significant Inputs are directly or indirectly
obsaervable from market data.

= Level 3! Inputs that are unobservable. This catogory includes all Instruments for which the valuation technique includes inputs that are not observable
and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes Instruments that are valued based on quoted
prices for similar Instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflact differences betwaen the instruments.
The Company uses widely recognised valuation mathods to determine the fair value of common and simple financial instruments, such a5 interest rate
swaps, optins, which use only observable market data as far as practicable. Observable prices or model Inputs are usually available in the market for listed
debt and equity securities, exchange-traded derivatives and simple OTC derivatives such as interast rate swaps.

28E. 1a. Financial Instruments measured at fair value — Fair value hierarchy

The following table analyses financial instruments measurad at fair value at the reparting date, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the faie
value measurement Is categarised.

The amounts are based on the values recognised in the statemant of financial position. The fair values include any deferred differences between the
transaction price and the fair value on initial recognition when the fair value s based on a valuation technigue that uses unobservable inputs,

Recurring fair value measurements at 31.03.2018

Financial instrumants measured at fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

Investments in Mutual funds 29.72 - = 29.72
Investments in Equity Shares # . - 0.50 0.50
Investments in Alternate Investment Funds * = 0.29 0.29
Total Assets 29.72 - 0.79 30.51

Recurring fair value measurements at 31.03.2018

Finaneial instruments measured at fair value Level 1 Lavel 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

Investments in Mutual funds 22.27 . 5 22,27
Investments in Eguity Shares it - - 0.50 0.50
Investmeants in Alternate Investment FlLﬂs * - 0.41 041
Total Assats 2227 = 0.91 23.18

Recurring fair value measurements at 01.04.2017

Financial instruments measurged at fair value Leval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

Investments in Mutual funds 20.82 - . 20.82
Investments in Equity Shares # - - 0.50 Q.50
Investments in Alternate Investment Funds ® = .35 0.35
Total Assets 20.82 : 0.85 21.67

K The fair values are determined basis the Independent third party valuations.
* The fair values of these investments are determined basis the NAV published by the funds.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

Particulars As at 31st March Az at 31st March
2019 20318

QOpening Balance 0.91 0.86
rTntaI gains or losses

-in profit or loss 0.02 0.01
MTM Gain / ( Loss ) . -
Purchases : 50.08
Disposal/ Settlements {0.14) (50.04)
Transfer out of Level 3 = .
Clasing Balance 0.79 0.91




IIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 29. Disclasure Purjuant to Ind AS 107 "Financial Instruments: Diselasures” (continued)

28E. 1b Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

[Financlal Assets and liabilities which are As at 31st March 2019 As at 315t March 2018 As at O1st April 2017
measured at amortised cost for which fair Carrylng Value Fair Valug Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Eair Value
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3.45 3.45 28.97 28.97 89753 B07.53
Recelvables -
{1) Trade receivables 422.12 42212 192.23 192.23 199.25 199.25
{ll) Other receivables 1.07 1.07 112 1.12 012 0.12
Loans 1,402.48 1,402.48 1,132.55 1,132.55 2098 20.98
Other financial assets 4,17 4.17 138.20 139.20 0.01 0.01
Financial Liabilities
{I}Trade payables

(i) total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises . = . "
|~ (ii) tlotal outstanding dues of creditors other

than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 115.53 115.53 159.84 153.84 111.19 111.19
Barrowings a - 175.00 175.00 - -
|Other financial liabilities 18.80 19.80 20,46 2046 56.99 56.99

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances trade and other receivables, loans and other financial assets are considered
to be the sama as their fair values due to their short term nature.

Financial liabilitles measured at amortised cost:

The carrying amounts of trade payables and other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values dus to their short term nature. The
carrying amounts of borrowings with floating rate of interest are considered ta be close to the fair value.
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Note 30. The Company operates from and uses the premises, infrastructure and other facilities and services as
provided to it by its holding Company/group companies, which are termed as ‘Shared Services'. Hitherte, such shared
services consisting of administrative and other revenue expenses paid for by the Company were identified and
recovered/recoverable from the Company based on reasonable management estimates, which are constantly refined
in the light of additional knowledge gained relevant to such estimation. These expenses are recovered on an actual
basis and the estimates are used only where actual expenses were difficult to determine.

Note 31. Corporate Social Responsibility

During the year , the Company has spent ¥5.69 mn (P.Y. ¥4.24 mn) as against T5.69 mn(P.Y. T4.24 mn) required to be
spent as per section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 In respect of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR). The Company
was focused on implementing long term high impact projects approved by the CSR Cammittee. The Company is
committed to supporting development of the country by contributing to achieving the sustainable development goals
and all its activities are directed towards this. Going forward these projects will be consclidated and scaled to achieve

a larger and deeper impact. The key focus areas includes maintenance of environmental sustainability, education and
health areas.

Note 32. Segment Reporting

In the opinion of the management, there is only one reportable business segment (Investing in connection with Asset
Management business) as envisaged by Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments', as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.
Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required to be made in the financial statements of the
Company. Secondary segment based on geography has not been presented as the Company operates primarily in
India and the Company perceives that there is no significant difference in its risk and returns in operating from
different geographic areas within India.
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Note 33, Related Party Disclosures:
Ralsted party disclosures for the year ended 315t March, 2018

a) List of Related Parties:

[Natura of raiationship Name of party
Diractor/ Key Managerial Parsonel Ms. Homai Daruwalla, Indapandant Directar

[Mr. Praneb Pattansyak; independent Diractar
Mr. Amit Shah, Directar ’resiEned w.e.f. January 24, 2019)

Mr. Anup Maheshwarl, Whole-Tima Directar and Joint Chief Executive D'mcnr(appn]m.q a5 Whals
Time Director w.e f, November 14, 2018 and as CEQ w.e.f August 27, 2018)

Mr, Prashasta Seth, Chief Executive Officer

Holding Company IIFL. Waalth Miﬂl‘!_m‘ﬂl Limited
Othar Related Parties * -
(Ultimate Haolding Company) IFL: Haldings Linad

im. Investmant Adviser and Trustee Services Limited

|IFL Waalth Finance Limited

IIFL Trustea Limited

E.l Altarnate Asset Advisers Limited

IIFL Distribution Services Limited

IIFL Wealth Securities IFSC Limited {w.e.f lune 232, 2018)

\IFL Waralth Advisers (India) Limited (w.e.f Novernber 22, 2018
IIFL Altiore Advisors Private Limited (w.e.f November 08, 2018
IIFL Wealth Emph:wnn Banafit Trust [u_th March 31, 2018)
IIFL Wealth Employes Welfare beanafit Trust (w.n.fAu_!ustm, 2018)
IIFL Private Wealth Managemant Dubaj) Limited

[IFL {Asia) Pte. Limitad

Fallow Subsidiaries

IEL inc.

IIFL Private Wealth Hong Kong Limitad

IIFL Asset Management {Mauritius) Limited (Fermerly IIFL Private Wealth [Mauritius] Ltd)
WEL Private Wealth lSuIssn) 5S4 (upto Fab 28, 2019)

IIFL Securities Pte. Limited

\IFL Capital [Canada) Limited

IIFL Capital Pte. Limited

IIFL Securities Limited {Formerly known as India Infaline Limited)

IIFL Commedities Limited {Formerly known as India Infoline Commodities Limitad)
India infoline Finance Limited

|IFL Home Finance Limited

NIFLI = Brokers Limited [Farmarly knewn as India Infoling In & Brokers Limftad)

Other Related Parties * 1IFL M. t Services Limited (Farmarly India Infaline Insurance Services Limitad)
{Group Companies) [IIFL Wealth [UK] Limited
IIEL Capital Inc.

\IFL Facilities Services Limited (Formarly knawn as [IFL Real Estate Limited)
[Samasta Microfinance Limited {w.c.f March 01, 2017)
Iﬁm Devel Private Limited

IIFL Aszet Reconstruction Limited (w.o.f May 09, 2017)
Mr. Karan Bhagat

Mr. Yatin Shah

Mr. Nirmal Jain

Mr, Venkataraman Rajamani

mcrnl Atlantic Singapare Fund Pte Limited
Ms.shllpa Bhagat (Spouse of Mr. Karan Bhﬂat)

Ms. Madhu Jain [Spousa of Mr. Nirmal lain)

Mr. Prakashchandra Shah (Relative of Mr. Yatin Shah)
india infoline Foundation

Private Limitad

Private Limited

India Alternatives Investmant Advisors Private Limited [Fellow Subsidia
Yatin Investment

Orpheous Trading Private Limited
Ardent Impex Private Limited

Other related partles Spaisa Capital Limited
Spaiza P2°P Limited

Spaisa Insurance Brokers Limited

MNJ Consultants Private Limited

Sunder Bhawar Ventures Private Limited

Sunder Bhanwar Holiday Home Private Limited { Upta Mar 04, 2018)

Upto March 31, 2017)

Kyra Family Private Trust
Bhagat Family Private Trust
Kyrush Family Private Trust
Navykia Family Private Trust
Prakash Shah Family Private Trust
Naysa Shah Family Private Trust
Kiaah Shah Family Frivata Trust

“Date of Demerger — 1 April 2018 being the appainted date |n terms of tha Composite Sehame of Arrangement amongst India Infaline Finance Limited ("IIFL
Finance”), IFL Holdings Limited ("IIFL Holdings"), India infoline Media and Research Services Limited (“IIFL M&R"), IIFL Securities Limited ("IIFL Securitles”), IIFL
Wealth Management Limited {"IIFL. Waalth") and IIFL Distribution Services Limited (“IIFL Distribution”), and thair respective sharsholders, under Sectlons 230 -
232 and other applicable provisions of the Companlas Act, 2013 ("Schama”) appreved by the Board of Directors of the Halding Company at its meeting held on
January 31, 2018, and appreved by the National Company Law Tribunal Banch at Mumbai {Tribunal) en March 07, 2019 under the applicabla provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013. The disclosures haraunder are an the bais of the said scheme becoming effectiva from April 1, 2018,




HIFL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financlal Statemants for the yesr ended March 31, 2019

b] Significant Transactions with Related Parties

{€ In Mn]
Other Related
Koy Managerial Fellow Other Related
Nature of Transactlon Parson Holding Company Subsidiarios Parting * Paitlss Total
(Group Companies)
(1B Giuen _
NIFL Wealth Mangement Limited 2,870,00 - . - 2,870.00
- 6,624.50) . {6,624.50]
IIFL Seeuritias Limitad £, - - - .
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - 3,473.40 - 3,473.40
- - {1,110.00) (1,110.00}
IIFL Wealth Finance Limited = 268 30 - - 268,30
= - |a64.00) - 2 (454.00)
IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited - 1,483.80 - - . 1,483.80
- (6.624.50) = - - {6,624.50)
IIFL Alternate Assat Advisers Limited . - 4.583.40 . - 4,583,40
IIFL Waalth Finanen Limited L - 264.30 - 268.30
: - {454.00] - : 464 00]
1IFL Waalth Mangemant Limited . 224,10 - . - 22410
- LZ,H'M.JH] - - = {2,474.14)
|||FL Wealth Finance Limited 3 £ 150.00 - - 190.00
. - {2.112.99) - (2.112.99)
HIFL Waalth Mangament Limited - 249,10 - - 249.10
- (2,445.14) - - . (2,449.14)
|I|FI. Waalth Finance Limited - - 340.00 - 340.00 |
- - (1.962.99) . (1,962.99)
IFL Wealth Management Limited - 24.64 - . 24,64
- {68.12) . (59.12)
IIFL Alternate Asset advisors Limlted . - 100.81 . - 100,81
- {0.B4} 5 . {0.84)
IIFL Waalth Finanes Limitad - - 0.08 - - D.ﬂ_ﬂ_
- * {0,24) - . {0.24)
IIFL Wealth Management Limited * 0.70 - - 0,70
3 [4.09) : : . 4,09}
IIFL Walth Finance Limitad = - 049 . E 0_52“
: : (0.53) : (0.93)
gervicas Procyred
IIFL Securities Limlted = - - 54.33 54,54
= : {30.90} . (30.98)
5 Palsa Capital Limited - - 0,004 - 0.004#
: [o.10] {.1a)
WFL Waalth Management Limited c : = = :
. {10.70} - . - (10.70)
IIFL Distributions Services Limited - 52.31 - - 62.31
- - {a7.93) - - {a7.93)|
IIFL Facliitles Sarvices Limited = C - 1a.09 . 14,00
% F ¥ (14,04] - [14.04)
India Infaline Foundation Limited - - . - 133 134
] = = : 14.24) (4.24)
g
Prashastha Sath - - - - .
(2.77) . - - (2.77)
Anup Mahashwari 13 M - . - 13.34
Homai A, Daruwalla 1.45 5 = = 1as |
{1.42} E: : (1.42)
Pranab Pattanaik 138 = = = 138
(1.29) - - - {1.29)|
paid
IIFL Wealth Mangement Limited . 36.27 - . . 36.27
- {15.88) . - . (19.88)
IIFL Securities Limitad = - - 0.004 - u%
= . E (0.04) - {0.04)
IIFL Distribution Services Limited B 0.24 = = 0.24
. (0.48) . - (0.98)|
IIFL Facilities Services Limited - - Q.01 . 0.01
India Infoline Commedities Limited = - i B N
z - i {0.18] (0.18)
IIFL Management Sarvices Limitad - - . = -
- : [L28] : 1231
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Notes forming part of Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

Other Related
Key M; Tal I
Nature of Transaction o P::::M " Helding Campany Su::lldTuwrie: Parilas * Dth::::::lw Total
{Group Companies)
i .
IIFL Management Services Limitad = - 0.6 0.46
¥ (0.01) (.01}
IIFL Waalth Mangemant Limited = 0.21 3 : - 0.21
. {0.22) - - {0.22)
IIFL. Distributions Services Limited = 3 D.61 - - D.51
: - (0.18 . - {0.18]
IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited . - . - -'L
= _E.Uﬂ - 0.05
IIFL Investrnent Adviser and Trustes . 0.05 = 0.05
Sarvicas Limitid - : {0.01) [0.01]
Othat funds Paid
|llFl. Wealth Mangement Limited o 5.84 . 5 5 B4
(6.89) - . - 16.83)
|IIFL Distributions Services Limited - - 0.32 0,32
- - {0.50) - - (0.50)
|IIF1 Securitles Limited . - 0.004 0.004
= - . (D.22) - (0.23)
|IlF| Altarnate Asiut Aduisars Limited 2 0.43 . - 0.33
|||FI. Waalth Finance Limited - . = = .
: (0.07) . - 0.07)
# Armaunt less than T 10,000,
{e) Amaunt due to / from related parties (Closing Balances):
Other Related
Nature of Transaction kay :'I::::nrint Halding Company Su::I:T::Ie: Parties * Dth;r “rm” Total
{Graup Companies) artles
Sundry Payables
IIFL Securities Limited = - 9.16 216
IIFL Wealth Managamant Limited . 19.63 = : £ 19:6!
- {6.92) - = F 6.32)]
|IIFI. Distribution Services Limited - - . . %
: {5.83) - (5.83)
|||Ft. Wealth Finance Limited - : - - .
: - 0.11} . - (0.11)
IIFL Management Services Limited - 2.30 - 2.30
|||FI. Distribution Services Limited 3 - 1.82 - 1.82
|IIFL Alternate Asset Advisors Limited - = - . x
- - (0.25) - (0.25)
Givan:
IIFL Altatnate Assat Advisors Limited = s s Z -
d : (1,110.00 - (1,110.00)
IIFL Wealth Management Limited - 1,386.20 = = 1,386.20
IIFL Wealth Management Limiad . - = , <
| - (25.00) . - - {25.00)
‘IIFLWeaIth Finance Limited : - - - =
- (150.00] - (150.00)
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Note 34, Subsequent [vents
There ware na subiseguent svants fram the date of financial staternents till the date of adoption af accounts

Nota 35, Approval of Financial Statements
The linanclal statemants ware approved far (ssuance by the Board of Directars on May 10, 2019

For and an behalf of Yrd of Directors

Placa : Mumbai
Dated: May 10, 2018

i3
ChieT Finantial Oficer

gl e DAL




